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Wednesday, February 25, 2015

--- Upon commencing at 9:34 a.m.
MS. LONG:  Please be seated.

Good morning, everyone.  The Board is continuing today in its hearing of Toronto Hydro's rate application, EB-2014-0116. 

     Before we begin, Mr. Keizer, it is the expectation of the Panel that Procedural Order No. 7 will be served on all the wireline attachment customers that Toronto Hydro has.  I just wanted to confirm that on the record, that that is being done.  

     MR. KEIZER:  That's my understanding, the ones that 

Toronto Hydro is aware of and is connected to its system. 

     MS. LONG:  That's right.  Thank you.  

     And Mr. Keizer, are there any preliminary matters before we start?  

     MR. KEIZER:  None from me. 

     MS. LONG:  I just wondered where we were with respect to necessary scheduling for next week.  

     MS. HELT:  Madam Chair, we have had some discussions with counsel for both Toronto Hydro as well as all of the intervenors.  It largely depends on how far we get with the panels this week.  

     The hope is to at least start panel 5 on Friday.  I have a limitation, in that I am not available next week, and I know that the other limitation is Mr. Shepherd, who can do his cross of panel 5 this Friday, but his cross is anticipated to be four hours.  So if he can't do it Friday, then he's available next week Wednesday or Thursday. 

     And I know that counsel for Toronto Hydro is working out their availability.  It may be that they're only available Tuesday and Thursday.


So Mr. Keizer has informed me Mr. Smith is going to be here later today, and as he will be doing the -- acting next week and acting for the other panels, we should have a better idea, hopefully, at lunchtime. 

     MR. KEIZER:  Madam Chair, we're doing our best to try to juggle schedules.  There are things that have been previously booked with courts or with other matters, so we're trying to orchestrate that, plus I think there are some other scheduling issues. 

     So we're endeavouring to try to resolve this today if we can. 

     MS. LONG:  Okay.  Well, my number one concern is obviously if the Panel is available; next, if the applicant is available.

So I would like to hear from you on that at the earliest opportunity, and then we will deal with counsels' conflicts as to what timing works for them and how we can accommodate getting this done next week, because we cannot sit on Friday.  So we need to be finished by Thursday. 

     MR. SMITH:  Understood. 

     MS. LONG:  Thank you.  With that being said, panel, good morning again.

And Mr. Dumka, I believe you are going to head us off.

TORONTO HYDRO-ELECTRIC SYSTEM LTD. - PANEL 1 (cont'd)


Elias Lyberogiannis, Previously Affirmed

Jack Simpson, Previously Affirmed

Angela Rouse, Previously Affirmed

Mike Walker, Previously Affirmed

Guillaume Paradis, Previously Affirmed

Robert Otal, Previously Affirmed

CROSS-EXAMINATION BY MR. DUMKA:

     MR. DUMKA:  There we are.  Good morning, panel.  I am here looking after the interests of the Society of Energy Professionals, and I am going to be asking some questions -- after I've got a better understanding of your organization, Mr. Walker -- with regards to contracting out of engineering services.  I have got a series of questions on that. 

     What I was hoping we could do, just to start off, to set the ground and set the context, if I could get Interrogatory 4A, CCC 29, appendix B, that is your organization chart for Toronto Hydro.  I just want to focus in on Mr. Walker's unit, just to set the context.


Mine doesn't seem to be on.  That's fine. 

     So I assume that there's you, Mr. Walker, at the top, the general manager, and I think you've got two of your managers on the panel, and Mr. Simpson, the director; is that correct?  

     MR. WALKER:  Yes, that's correct.  

     MR. DUMKA:  Okay.  What is the general size of your organization, in terms of headcount?  I am not looking for precise.  Ballpark. 

     MR. WALKER:  I think it is about 100 to 110. 

     MR. DUMKA:  100 to 110?  Okay.

And just some -- I am getting around some questions I would have for -- simple questions for panel 4.  I notice that Mr. Simpson's a director, and the other direct reports you have are managers. 

     Is that a different -- is he at the same level?  Or does he have, let's call it, higher accountabilities, and he is in a different salary band?  Or are they all the same?  Is there an organizational difference?  

     MR. WALKER:  It is -- I don't know if I can answer directly as to whether it is a different salary band.  I am not really sure, to be honest. 

     A director generally has slightly higher responsibilities, but, you know, it's relatively equivalent in terms of those roles. 

     MR. DUMKA:  Okay.  Okay.  Now, when -- during the technical conference I asked some questions, and Mr. Lyberogiannis was on.  And I understand there are supervisors underneath the manager directors. 

     And I'm just -- just so I understand the organizational context, we've got two people with supervisor positions on this panel.  How does it work going down to, you know, the engineers, the business analysts?  What are the levels of supervisors?  Is there one level of supervisor underneath a manager?  And then business analysts and engineers report to them?  Or is there a hierarchy of supervisors?  

     MR. WALKER:  No, that's correct.  The engineers and the analysts report to the supervisors, and the supervisors report to the managers or the directors. 

     MR. DUMKA:  Okay.  And again, this is going to lead into my questions on the engineering services, et cetera. 

     Do the supervisors have the -- I will call it the performance review accountability for the engineers and the business analysts?  Or is that the next level up?  You know, in terms of doing the annual reviews and this sort of stuff? 

     MR. WALKER:  No, that is the supervisors. 

     MR. DUMKA:  The supervisors?  Okay.  So they have got all that sort of -- I don't know what you -- the soft accountabilities, the hire and fire, the annual reviews and all that sort of stuff; is that right?

     MR. WALKER:  Yes, that's correct. 

     MR. DUMKA:  Okay.  That's fine.  And you've got about 100, 110 people in your unit.  Roughly how many of those are Society engineers?  

     MR. WALKER:  I think it is about 50.  

     MR. DUMKA:  About 50?  Okay.  So that was my other question, because the next organizational box beside you is project engineering, so I wasn't sure if there was a split or whatever in terms of Society engineers, but they're primarily in your unit, then? 

     MR. WALKER:  Yes. 

     MR. DUMKA:  Okay.  That's what I wanted to clarify.  Okay.  I think that's all my questions there, in terms of setting context.  

     One other thing.  Something that's not -- hasn't been clear to me in all the cross-examination is, you know, back to your day job, I know you have other accountabilities here on the witness panel, but in terms of the capital spend, you know, the projects that are out there, how much of that are you actually accountable for in terms of your job back at Toronto Hydro?  Like, you know, the Copeland projects or whatever?


Do you have the accountability of getting the approval for those types -- or which types of projects do you have the accountability for getting approval for, and then, for want of a better word, you know, the accountability for the progress and the final cost, the spend?  

     Which -- do you have generally all of that for the core program?  Or some subsection?  

     MR. WALKER:  I think, for simplicity's sake, if you think of the four categories of the DSP, my group is responsible for planning the system renewal, the system service, and the system access portions of that.  

     MR. DUMKA:  Okay. 

     MR. WALKER:  There are some differences.  Like, Copeland station, as you mentioned, is not directly under my purview. 

     MR. DUMKA:  Oh, I see.  Okay. 

     MR. WALKER:  And my accountability is more for the planning and budgeting of that work.  The execution then moves to other groups. 

     We're obviously still involved and still concerned, but it's a different accountability at that point. 

     MR. DUMKA:  Right.  Okay.  So at the end of the day -- you can pick whichever project you like -- you plan it, you go ahead, and you get whatever approvals are necessary to start the project, and then it gets handed off to construction. 

     At the end of the day, whatever it is -- say we're, you know, renewing a string of -- you know, of poles with pole-top transformers, et cetera, once that project is done, who has accountability if it's been on schedule or off schedule, over-spent, under-spent?  Would that be you or the construction manager?

     MR. WALKER:  I would say the primary accountability is the execution groups.  We all share in accountability for the ultimate outcome of the program. 

     MR. DUMKA:  Right. 

     MR. WALKER:  But I would call it sort of a secondary accountability at that point. 

     MR. DUMKA:  I see.  Okay.  All right.  That makes things a lot clearer for me.  Just give me a second.


One of the things -- and unfortunately I was going to pull the Copeland project as an example just to ask some questions about the contracting out.  So I hope you will be comfortable, you know, dealing with that at a high level.  

     Something that wasn't clear to me in terms of this, and maybe it is just a presentation thing, there is a line in the tables that I have seen for AFUDC, you know, the interest capitalized on projects. 

     When you get a project released, I would assume that it includes that component of costs.  Or is that held outside?  

     MS. ROUSE:  The allowance for funds used during construction that you referred to is a cost that is layered on by the finance group.  

     MR. DUMKA:  Right.  No, I can appreciate that, but what I am asking is -- and unfortunately, I have picked Copeland to ask some of my questions on contracting out -- if your accountability for getting Copeland approved to go ahead, and it's roughly $190 million, is that approval -- does that include accountability for the AFUDC?  

     I realize that finance calculates it and all of that, just the same way you layer in all of the other project costs into that work order, or series of work orders.  But I am just -- I am wondering who has the accountability for the total project cost.  

     You know, when Mr. Walker releases his -- or gets approval for his project, does that include the AFUDC component?  

In organizations I'm familiar with, it does.  You know, you may be accountable for the core work, but you're 

accountable for the total cost.  There is a subtlety here that I am getting at.  

     MR. WALKER:  I'm not sure exactly what you mean by 

"accountability" for it.

Ultimately, the total cost of the project, the project team is accountable for that. 

     MR. DUMKA:  Right. 

     MR. WALKER:  So, you know, the AFUDC is not something 

tangible you can manage, if you know what I mean, directly But it is included in their accountability for the total cost of the project. 

     MR. DUMKA:  Okay.  All right.  Just in general, I want to get some feel for the level of contracted-out engineering services in your unit, you know, just sort of ballpark, in terms of fives of millions or whatever else, just to sort of get a sense of what level that would be of spend.  

     MR. WALKER:  Sorry, you mean the portion of the cost of projects that is related to engineering?  Is that your question?  

     MR. DUMKA:  Yes, in general.  And I assume -- maybe I should step back -- I assume on that occasion you may get external contracts for some sort of engineering work, which may not be directly project-related.  I don't know if, you know, in terms of the planning or whatever else, if you use somebody like -- I'm picking names out of the air like Hatch Acres -- or somebody to do some of the back office stuff for you, or is that essentially done in-house?  

     MR. WALKER:  We do have contract engineers.  They are 

payroll contract engineers, so it is not through an 

agency, per se.  Like, they're on our actual payroll, but they are contracted. 

     MR. DUMKA:  Okay.  Okay.  All right, that makes sense.  Just sort of in a ballpark range, how much of the engineering work that you pay for in your role, how much of that is contracted out and the contract engineers that are on the payroll -- sort of ballpark.  I'm not looking for hundreds of thousands, just a ballpark number.  

     [Witness panel confers] 

     MR. WALKER:  I'm not sure exactly, but at a guess I would say about 5 percent.  

     MR. DUMKA:  5 percent of your engineering, or 5 percent of your total spend?  

     MR. WALKER:  Sorry, 5 percent of the engineering cost.  

     MR. DUMKA:  5 percent of the engineering cost. 

     So if you've got -- to put this in context, I think the payroll figures that we got, compensation figures we got for the Society, there's a breakdown of the numbers.  I think it is roughly $8 million a year is the total compensation for Society engineers. 

     So you're saying 5 percent of $8 million, generally, is what you're using in terms of external contract services.  Does that include the component -- I realize there could be some difficulty in ballparking it.  If you have a turnkey-type project like Copeland, where all of the construction and design work is done externally, would that 5 percent include those figures?  

     MR. WALKER:  No, it wouldn't. 

     MR. DUMKA:  Okay.  To step back, when you decide -- you know, in a design-build type contract or one that has a design component to it, what's the decision criteria for using external engineering, as opposed to internal?  

     MR. WALKER:  Well, as we define the work of engineers, 

that's not done through the unit price contract. 

     The engineering planning part of it is done in-house, 

either with our own staff or with our contract staff. 

     MR. DUMKA:  Mm-hmm.  Mm-hmm. 

     MR. WALKER:  Then the design portion of it is, when it is put out to contractors, done by the contractors.  

     MR. DUMKA:  Right.  Circling back to my question, what is the decision point for going with an external design 

component?  Why would you go -- rather than use your in-house engineering staff, including, you know, the contract engineers on your payroll, why would you go outside for the design component?

     MR. WALKER:  Well, for design specifically, we have a certain, you know, capacity or capability for design, within our operation. 

     So we have to keep them busy first, so to speak.  So we give them work up to their capacity, and then anything else goes out for external design. 

     MR. DUMKA:  Okay.  So it is primarily a volume-driven thing, for want of a better phrase?

     MR. WALKER:  That's right.  That is one of the advantages of having contract opportunities. 

     MR. DUMKA:  Right. 

     MR. WALKER:  If our work level drops in one year from the next, you know, we don't have to affect our internal resources.  We have the contractors to absorb that. 

     MR. DUMKA:  Right.  Okay.  Yes.  So that deals with your peaks and valleys, right?  

     MR. WALKER:  That's right. 

     MR. DUMKA:  Your internal staff are the valley, and peaks you go outside and you bring in contract engineers on payroll as well, I assume, as part of that peak?  

     MR. WALKER:  Yes, that's right.  

     MR. DUMKA:  Okay.  I think I've covered -- we have covered a lot here. 

     I just want to step back, in terms of -- and this sort of overlaps my interest on the engineering side, as well as on the construction side.  I apologize that I happened to pick Copeland, because there seemed to be a lot of stuff on it. 

     I'm wondering if -- let me find the – actually, before we get to Copeland, one other thing I forgot to ask you about.  

     A number of my friends were asking you about the capital planning, engineering and support spend metric that you are going to be using going forward.  

     And it strikes me like the components in that are largely in your organization; is that correct?  

     MR. WALKER:  Largely.  

     MR. DUMKA:  Yes. 

     MR. WALKER:  There are other areas.  We have some 

engineers in our operations control room area that charge some of their time to that. Some of the field charges go there as well.  

But largely, it is in my area.  

     MR. DUMKA:  Right.  And we know, just looking at a metric like that based on dollars, I've seen that in other organizations.  And when you hit those valleys, that metric is not going to look as good, just because of the nature. 

You know, the denominator is your total capital spend. 

So even when you go back to your valley resourcing, the 

percentage metric is going to rise on those occasions just by the nature of it? 

     MR. WALKER:  Yes.  Unless we were to get rid of some of the contract engineers, as an example, that would lower it.  

     MR. DUMKA:  Right.  That makes sense.  Okay.  I just want to find my reference -- pardon me while I fumble through the mounds of paper that I have here. 

     Actually, one other question before I ask you some broad questions on Copeland. 

     My friends in CUPE had asked you some questions on the first day on schedule J2, 29, CUPE 14, page 2, and there's a similar one, CUPE 15. 

     They were asking you about, you know, the make-up or what was in whatever category, maintenance contracts, purchased services.  I assume that if I want to find out if there is any -- any external engineering captured in here, I should ask panel 3?  Whichever witness is prepped for the CUPE questions would be able to handle any questions I would have with regards to the engineering -- external engineering component in there? 

     MR. KEIZER:  That would be our understanding, yes. 

     MR. DUMKA:  Okay.  I just wanted to clarify that.  Yes.  Okay. 

     Just -- and these are very broad questions on Copeland.  I am suggesting that we go to Exhibit 2B, section E7.9, and I think it is page 5.  There's a table there, and Copeland is the first one.  I don't want to ask questions about, you know, detailed spend or whatever else.  I just want to get a feel for how these sorts of external contracts are managed. 

     I see with the project in 2016 it is about 193 million, and I know on February 6th the updated things -- the in-service date for the project moved; I think it was 2015 before.  So presumably some of the spend got shifted forward as well; is that right?  

     MR. WALKER:  Yes, that's correct.  

     MR. DUMKA:  And I'm not concerned with the precise numbers, just sort of the ballpark.  I assume that whatever it was, you had about –- 124 million was supposed to go in service in 2014 and now it isn't. 

     Would it be safe to assume -- and I am not looking for the numbers that -- a portion of that 124 million has been spent or paid for in 2014?  Obviously not all of it, but would that be fair?  I don't want to get into the numbers, because I know about the concerns about the preliminary actuals and all of that.  I just want to get some sense in terms of how much work was done by the external contractor.  

     So would it be fair to say somewhere in the range of $100 million was spent on the project in -- 

     MR. WALKER:  In 2014, you're asking?  

     MR. DUMKA:  Yes, yes.  

     MS. ROUSE:  I believe the 2014 preliminary results are 

showing that the spend in 2014 was approximately 82 million. 

     MR. DUMKA:  82 million.  And because the in-service date for the project has now been shifted to, I think it is, the latter half of 2016, would essentially the entire in-service add be in 2016, or did some of it go in in '14? 

     I don't need the number.  I am just asking if some of it would have gone into service.  There was a discussion yesterday, and there was a distinction made with regards to civil work, you know, the distinction about, well, if it's -- if the line is energized, it goes into service, you know, transformer's energized, it goes into service. 

     So with this big project, would it be safe to assume -- and again, I don't care about the numbers, but if there is an in-service add, I guess it is because some of the civil work was completed on the project?  

     MS. ROUSE:  Yes.  I don't have the specifics in front of me, but you are correct that there are some components that will come in service before the end of the project in 2016. 

     MR. DUMKA:  Okay.  That's fine.  That's fine.  

     What I'm getting at -- and pardon me for the roundabout fashion -- so there is a design component in there.  There is some engineering work. 

     And what I am curious about -- and this could be the wrong project that I picked -- what is it, in general terms, with the contracts that you have for design-build -- and I guess some of the stuff that CUPE was asking you about as well, in terms of contracts. 

     What do you have built into the contracts -- and I'm not looking for the contract terms -- what do you have built into the contract that keeps the contractor on a timely basis in completing the work? 

     I know there are reasons why Copeland has slipped, but now it is -- before it was going to be 2013 it was going to be done, then '14, then '15, and now '16. 

     So I'm wondering, in broad terms, what kind of penalties or incentives do you have built into a contract to keep that contract on the time schedule.  

     MR. KEIZER:  Madam Chair, I think that question is best for panel 3.  Mr. Nash, who is going to appear on panel 3, is involved with procurement and knows the terms and conditions related to the contracts.  

     MS. LONG:  He is going to be able to answer those questions?  Because I would think from a general sense Mr. Walker might be able to talk about incentives.  But if he can't -- 

     MR. KEIZER:  We can try with Mr. Walker, and then if he can't, then --

     MS. LONG:  If he can't, then we will push it to panel 3.  But Mr. Walker, is that something you feel comfortable answering?  

     MR. WALKER:  Mr. Simpson can maybe answer some things at a high level, but I think there is a level of detail that's probably beyond this panel. 

     MS. LONG:  Right.  Mr. Dumka, I understood your question to be a very high-level, 30,000 feet:  Are there incentives, are there provisions to make sure the work is done on a timely basis? 

     MR. DUMKA:  Yes, yes. 

     MS. LONG:  That's the context in which we would be wanting you to answer the questions.  Anything further with respect to contract terms will go to panel 3.  

     MR. SIMPSON:  So the contract will include features such as liquidated damages on schedule delays, to encourage the contractor to meet schedule. 

     MR. DUMKA:  Mm-hmm. 

     MR. SIMPSON:  Above that is the philosophy of, you know, a specific block of work assigned to a single contractor to perform, and that is embedded in the contract.

MR. DUMKA:  So that would be the Copeland-type project.


So -- and this -- where I am getting at is, in terms of the design portion, so there would be -- if they're falling behind in the design, there is some sort of a penalty built in, if that's what's driving the delay in the project?  Is that a fair assessment?  

     MR. KEIZER:  The only reason I'm -- 

     MS. LONG:  You are concerned with the word "penalty"?

     MR. DUMKA:  Use whatever word you -- 

     MR. KEIZER:  I am actually also -- I think as part of the Copeland evidence update, we did file information that was in confidence, relating to the current issues involving 

relationships between the contractor and Toronto Hydro, which are treated in confidence. 

     So I guess I am just being cautious as to -- 

     MR. DUMKA:  Okay.  Maybe we can, if it's easier to answer -- I'm not looking for the details on the ins and outs with Copeland.  I am just using that as a general example of a contract with a design portion in it, so I am just -- that's why I'm asking these sorts of questions, in terms of, we will call them, the financial incentives, because I know --

     MS. LONG:  Sorry, Mr. Dumka, not to put words in your mouth, but are you trying to explore whether, on any of these projects that have a design element, that there would be any -- I guess whether there is any incentive to complete or there is a disincentive if one -- or some kind of penalty if one does not complete on time beyond what Mr. Simpson has said, that there is a liquidated damages provision?

     MR. DUMKA:  Yes. 

     MS. LONG:  Because I think that is his evidence.  Are you asking him if there is anything further than that?  

     MR. DUMKA:  In broad terms. 

     MS. LONG:  In broad terms?  Not with respect to the Copeland project per se? 

     MR. DUMKA:  Yes. 

     MS. LONG:  But any type of work that would be done?  And I think what you're asking about is standard practice?  

     MR. DUMKA:  Yes.  

     MS. LONG:  Mr. Keizer, does that still cause you concern, framed that generally?

     MR. KEIZER:  No.  I don't have a problem with the question framed in that way.  I do still believe that Mr. Nash may be the best person to address that. 

     MS. LONG:  Well, Mr. Simpson, I would expect that if that is the extent of the knowledge that you have on this question, that you would simply state that, and we will ask Mr. Nash -- Mr. Dumka will ask Mr. Nash for further particulars if it's --

     MR. SIMPSON:  It is best suited for panel 3. 

     MS. LONG:  So I think you have gone as far as you can on this question, and you can feel free to explore it on the next panel. 

     MR. DUMKA:  Okay.  That's fine. 

     I just wanted to touch base before I leave this -- I'm pretty well done -- and yesterday Mr. Faye was asking Mr. Simpson some questions on the use of, you know, the battery installations and whatever else. 

     And I have a broader question.  Again, I am looking at it from the engineering perspective, and the impression I was left with, with the discussion yesterday, was that Toronto Hydro is sort of in the experimental phase with these types of installations. 

     And my question to you, Mr. Simpson, or to Mr. Walker -- maybe Mr. Walker is the one to answer this question -- I'm wondering what is the tipping point where -- I assume that primarily you're using external resources to do this stuff right now, because it is the experimental phase. 

     I am just curious because of the way in general the 

industry is changing.  What's the tipping point where it is now economically advantageous to bring the work in-house?  

You know, like sort of -- just using the particular program that Mr. Faye was asking about, at what point in time -- we had the discussion of, I think, one of 20 cars will be electric, or that's the desire of the province. 

     So at what phase of going to that would it be economically advantageous to Toronto Hydro to bring the work in-house, as opposed to relying on external expertise, which may, because of the demand and the availability, be difficult to get?  

     [Witness panel confers] 

     MR. WALKER:  In these kinds of projects where they're new to our experience, we typically do use external expertise initially.  But we always have internal people involved in the process, and the intent is always to ultimately build that in-house capability. 

     You know, I've always viewed engineering as kind of a core competency of a utility.  So we don't want to have those kind of capabilities, in the long term, not in-house.  

     MR. DUMKA:  Right.  Okay. 

     MR. WALKER:  But Mr. Simpson can maybe give an example, if that helps. 

     MR. DUMKA:  Sure.  I would appreciate that.  

     MR. SIMPSON:  In the case of the energy storage projects, our role so far has been one of collaboration, where we're minimizing our costs expended on those projects.

But we are looking to learn from them and gain experience, and we have a review process where we look at this newer technology, and if it has the near-term grid benefits we're seeking, then we will apply it more broadly in our regular business. 

     And in all of that collaboration and review, we're using a mix of internal and external engineering resources.  

     MR. DUMKA:  Mm-hmm.  

     MR. SIMPSON:  Thank you. 

     MR. DUMKA:  Okay.  Thank you.  I appreciate that.  I have one last question, and it's a proposition -- actually, before I get to that, I meant to start off -- one of my friends asked me -- and I was afraid I was going to forget about this. 

     We got the KPIs yesterday on a confidential basis, and SAIDI and SAIFI were on there.  I'm wondering if somebody, maybe Mr. Paradis, can clarify the calculation, if the version of SAIDI and SAIFI that we have seen in the KPIs includes the MEDs, or whatever else.  

     MR. PARADIS:  So for internal reporting, the values would not include MEDs.  

     MR. DUMKA:  Okay. 

     MR. PARADIS:  They would include loss of supply and planned outages. 

     MR. DUMKA:  Okay.  Thank you for that. 

     I have just one last question and it is really a high-level, in terms of the cost pressures and whatever else. 

     One of the undertakings that was provided yesterday -- I will set the context.  It will take longer to set the context than it will for you to say "yes" or "no," so I apologize for that. 

     In the undertaking yesterday, the question being answered was:  When were the numbers, the financials for this, your submission finalized?  It was late June, something like that.  

     And my understanding, in broad terms, in terms of the pricing of materials and equipment -- and you, Mr. Walker, have said a number of times that roughly 81 percent of the work is market-driven, you know, whether you're using contractors, you buy the materials and equipment yourself.  So it is market-based pricing. 

     My understanding in the industry is, generally speaking, in terms -- and there are always exceptions.  For materials and equipment, it is a world market, priced in US dollars. 

     So you may be buying stuff from Joe's Poles and Cables, but that company is buying things -- generally speaking, and there are exceptions -- on the world market, priced in US dollars. 

     And I had a look-see, you know, where we were in terms of the exchange rate at the end of June, and it was somewhere in the range -- depending upon how you want to look at it, it would cost $1.06 Canadian for a US dollar. 

     And yesterday morning, when I looked -- and these things change slightly every day -- it was about $1.25.7 for a US dollar.

So my proposition to you -- and I know panel 3 has got the specialists, but in your position as general manager, would it be a fair assumption to say that over the next several years, to do the exact same work that you have in now, because of the change in the exchange rate -- and I know there is hedging contracts, which may keep pricing the same for years, but would it be a fair assumption that next year, if not this year, to do the exact same work, to buy those materials, it is going to cost you significantly more, you know, in the range of 15 or 20 percent more than it did when you did your pricing in June?  Is that a fair assumption?  

     [Witness panel confers] 

     MR. WALKER:  I'm not really the right person to answer that, because I honestly don't know what our, you know, contract arrangements are, what the terms are, how we're pricing things.  

     So I'm really not -- I don't have enough expertise to answer that.  

     MR. DUMKA:  Okay.  That's fair enough.  I guess I should have put the context, you know, my understanding, for example, the big -- what's left of the big three automobile manufacturers.

Everybody has said that in the fall, prices are going up to buy a car in Canada, just simply because they're priced in US dollars.  A lot of them -- a lot of the components, et cetera, are manufactured in the US. 

     So I would anticipate the same, in terms of equipment.  But fair enough; I will ask --

     MR. WALKER:  We may have long-term contracts in place that mitigate that.  I honestly don't know. 

     MR. DUMKA:  That's it.  Those are all of my questions.  And I think I made it in in less than half an hour.  Thank you.  

     MS. LONG:  Thank you, Mr. Dumka.

Ms. Helt?

     CROSS-EXAMINATION BY MS. HELT:  

     MS. HELT:  Thank you, Madam Chair.

Good morning, members of the panel.

I just have a follow-up question with respect to Copeland, and perhaps you can just let me know, if you know, what parts of Copeland are considered used and useful, and thus in-service, before the station is energized.  

     MR. SIMPSON:  Since Copeland is a very large project, we are looking at separate chunks of the project for ISA. 

     The 2014 ISA amounts included some work on the Rees Street infrastructure. 

     The 2015 ISA will be largely the civil work, including the tunnel, where we will deem that useful, and some engineering through that period. 

     And then for year 2016, the ISA amounts will be the balance of the electrical -- that is, the main GIS and GIT equipment -- and the HONI contributions that will be finalized at that point.  

     MS. HELT:  Great.  Thank you.

I now have some questions with respect to capital investment planning, and I'm going to be referring to my compendium.  I don't know if you have that before you.  It was filed as Exhibit K2.1.  

     Before we go to this first page of the compendium -- thank you very much for being so efficient there -- if we can turn to Exhibit 2B, schedule E2, page 4.  There it is.  Okay.

And the box at the top talks about the capital investment approach, and the first category, asset renewal, I believe is determined firstly by the feeder investment model method, or, secondly, by using the useful end-of-life; is that correct?  

     MR. PARADIS:  Yes, that's correct. 

     MS. HELT:  And can you indicate what proportion, in dollars, of the asset renewal is determined from the feeder investment model for each of the years?  


[Witness panel confers]

     MR. PARADIS:  We don't have the exact proportions available right now. 

     MS. HELT:  Is that something that you could provide by way of undertaking?  

     MR. PARADIS:  Yes, we could provide that.  

     MS. HELT:  All right.  Then Undertaking J6.1 will be to provide the proportion, in dollars, of asset renewal determined from the FIM for each of the years.  Thank you.  

UNDERTAKING NO. J6.1:  TO PROVIDE THE PROPORTION, IN DOLLARS, OF ASSET RENEWAL DETERMINED FROM THE FIM FOR EACH OF THE YEARS. 

     MS. HELT:  If we can then turn to page 1 of my -- of Board Staff's compendium, this deals with outputs produced 

by the long-term system review process, which include the establishment of overall capital investment levels, which are then populated with capital investment programs.  

     Looking at the reference, would it be reasonable to consider the long-term process as a top-down/bottom-up approach, where the top-down part is the determination of the long-term capital investment plan?  

     MR. PARADIS:  Yes.  That seems like a reasonable characterization.  

     MS. HELT:  Okay.  Thank you.  And can you indicate if there is anywhere in the application where the determination of the 4 billion determination amount for capital investment is actually shown?  

     MR. PARADIS:  Could you clarify what 4 billion you're 

referring to?  

     MS. HELT:  Oh, okay.  So if you can -- we will rephrase that for the 2 and a half billion, then, over the five years.  

     MR. PARADIS:  And the question was?  

     MS. HELT:  It is just:  Is there anywhere in the application where you actually show how that 2 and a half billion was derived in a detailed manner?  

     MR. PARADIS:  So just to clarify, the $2.5 billion you're referring to, is that from Exhibit 2B, section E2, page 5?  Would that be the $2.5 billion?  

     MS. HELT:  Yes.  Yes.  


[Witness panel confers] 

     MR. PARADIS:  If I can take you to, within the same section, E2, page 11 this time, so the 2.5 billion is essentially the section of that pie chart of our asset base that is at end-of-life.  So those are the assets that are deemed to be at end-of-life at this stage.  

     MS. HELT:  So that's the 26 percent?  

     MR. PARADIS:  That's correct. 

     MS. HELT:  All right.  So is that a top-down approach, then, in terms of your capital investment planning?  

     MR. PARADIS:  Again, it's a top-down in the sense that the long-term planning process accounts for the overall state of our asset base, but as we've detailed in that section -- and earlier during this proceeding -- we do build our plans based on the specifics of each areas of our system. 

     So the long-term process involves an overall review of our asset base in terms of age, in terms of types of equipment, in terms of demographics. 

     But when the time comes to build a program, we would look at specific performance in specific areas and specific characteristics for the assets that are in that area.  

     So there is a component of top-down, in the sense that we review the entire system to identify overall trends and overall needs.  But when it comes to defining our intervention, it is really more of a bottom-up approach.  

     MS. HELT:  Okay.  Thank you.  That's helpful. 

     MS. LONG:  I'm sorry, Ms. Helt, I want to understand the question.  Are you asking if there is somewhere in this application where we could go and add up the numbers and get to $2.5 billion?  

     MS. HELT:  Well, yes, that was -- yes, that -- 

     MS. LONG:  And your answer, Mr. Paradis, is?  

     MR. PARADIS:  There would not be, because the process, as we went through it, was we identified the 2.5.  We considered an accelerated approach, as Mr. Walker talked about.  Then we evaluated a paced approach, which we felt for a variety of reasons was more appropriate. 

     And then that would be where the program definition took place, and the specifics that make up those programs are found in all of the business cases that support them. 

     So there would not be anywhere where you could just add up numbers and find that figure, if you will.  

     MS. HELT:  Okay.  Thank you.


So how should the Board then evaluate the calculation of the overall capital investments envelope which has to be populated?  

     MR. PARADIS:  I think there might be a disconnect here.  It's not a creation of envelopes which we then endeavour to fill with work.  It is an overall overview of our system to assess the state that it's in.  And that overall assessment, you know, is where we identify the general backlog of assets and the extent of the need of our system, but we then look at each program on their own and identify work in those programs, based on performance, based on specific metrics for each program. 

     So it's not a high-level envelope that we then endeavour to fill.  That's not the approach we take.  

     MS. HELT:  So then the matching up -- matching bottom-up part for the capital investment programs, what you would do is target prioritized assets and issues?  Is that essentially what you're saying?  

     MR. PARADIS:  At a high level, yes, that's what we would be doing. 

     MS. HELT:  And you do that -- you determine those prioritized assets from current state assessments that you do?  

     MR. PARADIS:  Yes.  

     MS. HELT:  All right.  If I could turn to page 3 of the compendium, please, looking at lines 15 through to 17, you state that:

"At a high level, the long-term objective of Toronto Hydro's asset management policy is to achieve an optimal 'steady state,' in which the number of assets that are past their economic end-of-life is minimized."

     Are we correct in saying that essentially you can't get your asset backlog down to zero?  

     MR. WALKER:  I think what we're saying is there will always be some assets that it is more cost-effective to take them beyond their economic end-of-life, because they're coupled with other assets. 

     You know, you wouldn't want to go out and replace all of the poles in an area and then come back, you know, two years later and replace all of the transformers, as an example. 

     So you would let the poles go that extra two years and replace them all together. 

     And the reciprocal is also true.  If the poles are in bad enough shape that we wanted to replace them, we would replace the transformers at the same time, even though they might not yet be at their end-of-life.  

     MS. HELT:  Thank you.

If we go to page 5 of the compendium, Exhibit 1B, tab 2, schedule 4, you state at the top that:

"If Toronto Hydro were to continue at the proposed annual average pace of investment beyond 2019, the system is forecasted to reach steady state by approximately 2037."

     So this would be –- generally, then, what you are proposing would be your year of equilibrium that is optimizing the balance between those that are risks and those that are renewals?  


MR. WALKER:  What that means is at that point -- the easy way to think about it is that at that point the backlog of assets, the assets that are past end-of-life today would be addressed through that paced approach.  

     So we would be at a point where most of our assets would be operating within their useful life.  

     MS. HELT:  Okay.  So then looking at that type of measure, when thinking about how the Board might measure progress in achieving the goals of maximizing useful life, would it be reasonable to say that it could -- the measure could be interpreted as an average lifetime of the current asset base?  

     MR. WALKER:  I'm not sure it is really a measure.  Maybe I didn't understand your question.  

     MS. HELT:  Well, essentially you have provided that -- we've talked about the measure of the percentage of assets beyond economic life.  I'm just wondering if that measure could be interpreted as an average lifetime of the current asset base.  

     MR. WALKER:  I'm still struggling with the last part of your question there.  

This is the current view of assets that are past end-of-life, compared to assets -- past useful life, to assets that are still within their useful life range today.  That's the snapshot as it exists today. 

     MS. HELT:  All right.  That's fine, then.  Thank you.  

     If we go to page 6 of the compendium -- and this is the pie chart that we've referred to and some of my friends have referred to previously, which shows how the beyond-lifetime assets increase from 2015 at 26 percent by 7 percent to 2020 -- can you tell us what the measure was of "beyond-lifetime assets" in 2012 compared with 2015?  

     [Witness panel confers] 

     MR. WALKER:  If I can take you to J1.3 from the technical conference, if you go to the second page, this was the breakdown as it was in 2011.  

We don't have 2012 here, but we have 2011.  

     MS. HELT:  That's fine.  Thank you.  

If we go to page 7 of the compendium, line 16:

"Toronto Hydro uses the FIM to determine optimal intervention timing on an individual asset, or the optimal timing for the replacement of a set of assets together.  In addition to determining the optimal intervention timing for individual assets, FIM provides a quantification of the estimated risk-based benefits of executing a program."

     Based on that, is it correct to say that the capital expenditure which is required in the future is ultimately 

determined from the intersection of the category asset life curve and the behaviour of the existing assets which THESL has in their inventory at that -- of that asset?  

     MR. PARADIS:  Could you perhaps restate the question?  I don't quite understand.  

     MS. HELT:  So if we go -- just one minute, please.

Going back to the compendium, page 1, which shows the curve, and we look at the intersection of the category   asset life curve of the new asset, and the risk curve for the existing assets --

     MS. SPOEL:  Sorry, Ms. Helt, which one is the asset life curve?  I don't see one labelled as that on the right-hand side of the page.  

     MS. HELT:  What we have is a -- in the new assets, we have an intersection, and the asset life curve is, I think, the -- all right.  This isn't the right graph.  Hold on one moment.  My apologies.  

     Sorry, but I had my exhibits mixed up there.  All right.  I am just going to leave that one for now until I can sort through that.  

     If we go to page 8 of the compendium, please, in response to the interrogatory, part (b), where we're talking about the end of useful life for an asset -- also known as useful life or mean life of the asset -- what we have here is we determine that by identifying the exact midpoint between the minimum useful life and the maximum useful life as defined by the Kinectrics report.  

     For station power transformers, the minimum useful life is 32 years and the maximum useful life is 55 years.  So the midpoint equals 43.5 years, which I believe Toronto Hydro rounded up to 44 years.  

     And in this instance, the station power transformer renewal program references the typical useful life value provided within the Kinectrics report of 45 years, since this value is close to the statistical mean or useful life value.  

     So if we reference, then, 2B OEB Staff 36 -- and I apologize, it is not in my compendium, but part (f), 3, at the bottom of the page in the response, where it states:

"For sensitivity analysis, if the useful life of a power transformer is changed to a theoretical value of 50 years old, then the percentage of power transformers exceeding the theoretical useful life would be 36.3 percent, equivalent to 90 power transformers."

     So could you provide us with a ballpark estimate of the cost of 90 power transformers?  

     MR. SIMPSON:  It would have some bearing if you want to do this in one year or over a period of time.  Are you considering doing this in one shot?  

     MS. HELT:  Well, sure.  Let's say if it's over one year.  


[Witness panel confers] 

     MR. SIMPSON:  We can scale the 2015 program, which is -- I will have to find the proper reference, but let's assume it was five or six units that year.  We need to qualify this a little bit, in that the site specifics will change.  So you can scale that if you assume they're all the same.  They will be different.  

     MS. HELT:  But on the basis that they're all the same, then, if you can give me your best estimate.  

     MR. KEIZER:  Madam Chair, I guess I am a bit confused by the question, because it sounds to me from Mr. Simpson's statements that it is a bit of a theoretical world that, one, all 90 would go in in one year, and that they would all be the same.  Since he has indicated that they're not going to be the same, I'm not sure what the value of the calculation is.  

     MS. HELT:  Well, then would it be easier if we did it over a five-year period?  Or is your concern the same?  

     MR. SIMPSON:  The concern remains that the site specifics change for each of those projects.  So the average may not yield the right information.  

     MS. LONG:  I am assuming, Ms. Helt, are you asking just for a ballpark figure here?

     MS. HELT:  Yes, correct. 

     MS. LONG:  I am assuming there will be quite a few caveats attached as to when it is done and where it is and whether it is part of a larger project.  But I think what you're looking for is just -- just that, a very rough estimate of what 90 power transformers would cost to replace.  

     MR. SIMPSON:  Yes, and forgive me.  Maybe the safest average to use is 24 units over that five-year period in the present program are 12.3 million.  And yes, we have many qualifiers on that.  You could just scale that to 90 instead of 24.  

     MS. HELT:  All right.  Thank you.  That is helpful.  

     If we go to page 10 of the compendium, please, and this is a response to OEB Staff 36, page 4 of 4.

And at line 7 it states, talking about depreciation and accounting and amortization:

"This decision was made based on a commonly held industry perception that, due to a persistent incentive for suppliers to minimize cost, a newly designed and manufactured power transformer is not as robust and 'over-engineered' as units built in the past."

     So is this essentially saying that the lifetime of transformers has declined from perhaps its previous 50-odd years to 30 years?  

     MR. WALKER:  Yes.  In the case of this particular asset class, traditionally, or in the past, these transformers were significantly over-engineered compared to their requirements.  You know, that's just the way they did things.  They built them very, very robustly, and they were very expensive as a result.  

     Today, we still, you know, buy transformers that meet the specifications, but they don't go anywhere near to the degree of robust construction that they used to.  So it is unlikely they're going to have that same lifespan.  

     MS. HELT:  And is there anywhere in the application that you can point me to which sort of supports that notion that the lifespan has gone down to approximately 30 years?  

     MR. WALKER:  Not specifically.  It's just our experience -- or expertise evaluation, based on how we know they're being designed today.  

     MS. HELT:  If we go to page 14 of the compendium, this is a reference to a technical conference undertaking response to a Board Staff undertaking, No. J1.15.  

     If we look at page 2, so -- I'm sorry, that is page 15 of the compendium, and looking at the TR1 transformers, you will note at the top it says:

"Figure 2 below shows the calculation for power transformer TR1."

     If we look at the TR1 and we're looking at the risk curve -- which is the red curve -- so the curve on the right for the existing asset shows that the optimal intervention time is roughly 40 years.  That's the intersection between the dotted line and the red line.  And that the current age of the asset is roughly 60 years.  And the curve shows that even beyond the 60 years, there's a finite risk cost. 

     So is it correct to say, then, that the theory predicts that at least some set of the TR1 transformers might serve beyond the 60 years?  


[Witness panel confers]

     MR. OTAL:  So just to clarify, in this example what the illustration is showing is that beyond its current age you're going to have that asset's risk cost continue to substantially increase over time.

That's how I would characterize it.  

     MS. HELT:  All right.  And if we go to page 14 of the compendium -- so just one page back -- and we look at this example, the age of the current set of TR2 transformers appears to be approximately somewhere around 70 to 80 years.  And the risk curve, however, does not even extend that far.


So can you explain why the predicted risk curve for the existing asset seems to not even extend that far?  Why the disconnect there?  

     MR. OTAL:  I would say it is simply the way the figure is displayed.  We would have to adjust the vertical of the graph to show where that line would be.  So the way the figure has been printed and displayed, we're only showing a portion of that existing asset's risk cost curve.  

     MS. HELT:  All right.  So would you know where it would extrapolate to, at around the 60-year mark for the risk curve?  


[Witness panel confers]

     MR. OTAL:  We could take that as an undertaking.  

     MR. PARADIS:  And maybe just as a point of clarification, these are specific to the one asset.  So the examples are reflective of the evaluation for that specific transformer in the case of TR2.  And the same thing for TR1.

MS. HELT:  All right.  Thank you.  So that will be Undertaking J6.2.  

UNDERTAKING NO. J6.2:  TO EXTRAPOLATE THE RISK CURVE FOR TR2 TRANSFORMERS TO THE 60-YEAR MARK.  

     MS. HELT:  Going now to page 18 of the compendium, we have some more risk curves and for new and existing assets.  

     If we look at line 10, we're talking about:

"Outputs produced by the long-term system review process include the establishment of overall capital investment levels, which are then populated with capital investment programs as per the Investment Planning process...

     And I guess this is relating to what we described earlier as populating overall capital investment levels with capital investment programs.  

     Can we assume that you have -- that Toronto Hydro has more than enough programs than is required to populate the capital investment levels?  

     MR. WALKER:  When you say "the capital investment levels," which levels are you referring to?    

     MS. HELT:  This is what you've defined as your long-term review process, which includes the establishment of your overall capital investment levels, which are then populated with the programs.  

     MR. WALKER:  Right, so -- perhaps you could restate your question?  

     MS. HELT:  So what I'm looking for is -- you know, I assume Toronto Hydro has a number of programs that it needs to implement. 

     And in determining which programs you will use to populate your capital investment levels, do you have more than enough programs to do so?  I suppose that's another way of saying it.  

     MR. WALKER:  Well, yes.  You know, ideally, as we talked about, we would want to be addressing all of the backlog assets, as an example, from an engineering perspective immediately.  

Obviously that's not a practical thing to do, but that would be the level of work we would ideally like to be able to undertake, and that is well beyond those levels.  

     MS. HELT:  And so would you -- if you can't fit a particular program into, perhaps, the levels that you have for a particular year, do you have options for reconciling the investment programs with the envelope?  

     MR. WALKER:  Well, I think I spoke to this yesterday.  If we -- I think you're saying if we had a different envelope than what we've proposed; is that --

     MS. HELT:  Sure. 

     MR. WALKER:  Then we would have to go back and re-evaluate our program, based on whatever expenditure level we had to work with, and that would affect, you know, certain programs in certain ways. I wouldn't want to speak specifically to that. 

     But it would, long-term, have a greater impact on our 

customers.  That's -- you know, our concern, would be that this is work that we need to do, and if we're not doing it on a planned fashion, there will be a lot more reactive work that we'll have to do, and that will ultimately end up being a more expensive proposition over time.  

     MS. HELT:  Okay.  Thank you.

And so just on that same note, then, would some of the things that you might do would be to extend some of the programs over numerous years, or delay to subsequent years?  Is that the type of thing that you're referencing as well?  

     MR. WALKER:  Well, the programs that we're putting forward don't end at the end of the five years.  Obviously the renewal program goes on well beyond that.

So I don't think you can characterize it as there are programs that are just going to stop.  

     MS. HELT:  Okay.  Thank you.

If we go to Exhibit E6.1 -- I'm sorry, it's not in my compendium -- I believe there is a table, if you go down further.  

This is something that -- can you go down a little bit further?  This one.  I'm looking for the replacement of assets program.  All right.

Historical and -- is there a chart that has the numbers for the replacements of assets?  Sorry, I don't have the page number.  

     MR. PARADIS:  I think it may be on page 13. 

     MR. QUESNELLE:  Page 13, yes. 

     MS. HELT:  All right.  Thank you.  

This is something we looked at yesterday.  Can you just explain how you determined the specific numbers for replacements of assets for each year? 

     MR. PARADIS:  Yes.  We did touch on that earlier this 

week.  

For 2015, we have a set of specific projects in specific areas, and so because we're closer to execution, of course, we have the details of precisely which assets will be replaced in the course of executing that work. 

     So those units were extracted from, you know, the 

proposed work.  And as we had discussed, units for future years were derived using those same proportions relative to the expected level of expenditure in those programs in future years.  

     MS. HELT:  Would there be any reason for the reduction in the replacement in the numbers from -- if we look at 2016 compared to 2015?  Would there be any specific reason associated with that?  

     MR. PARADIS:  Not specific to this program.

Generally, when we look at the combination of all of our proposed programs, there are some trade-offs in terms of requirements for resources in programs where the resources may be similar. 

     So it could partly be a result of having additional 

expenditures in programs where the resources are also put to use.  But it wouldn't be specific to this program.  

     MS. HELT:  All right.  

     MR. PARADIS:  Does that answer the question?  

     MS. HELT:  Yes, thank you.

If we go to page 20 of the compendium, line 13 states that:   

"For this rate-setting application, Toronto Hydro asked Kinectrics Inc. to assess the progress that Toronto Hydro has made with its [asset condition assessment] program since Kinectrics' most recent audit in 2012."

     The Kinectrics assessment indicates that there is a declining asset condition in 17 of the 21 categories.  This is referenced on page 21 of the compendium, where it's saying there is a declining asset condition in 17 of the 21 categories.  Is this between the years 2012 and 2014?  

     MR. PARADIS:  Yes, that's correct.  

     MS. HELT:  And would it be fair to say that there hasn't been any progress in that period between 2012 and 2014, but rather a decline in asset condition?  

     MR. PARADIS:  I wouldn't characterize it that way.

There has been a decline across a number of our populations in terms of health, and that's generally reflective of the state of our asset base and the backlog of assets being at the end of their useful lives, as we've indicated earlier. 

     And that also speaks to the general renewal need of our system.  So there has been progress made, in the sense that we have been renewing our asset base, and we are addressing some of those populations.  But given the overall demographics, the deterioration is occurring at a pace that is still somewhat faster than our renewal activities.  

     MR. WALKER:  Sorry, but I think it might be useful just to reiterate that a big portion of our consideration for what assets we need to address is based on the age of those assets. 

     You know, we do have condition data, but it's not 

comprehensive of all conditions of our assets.  So we know that if we've got a 40-year-old pole, we expect it to -- across the population, to behave like a 40-year-old pole, not like a brand new one. 

     There are going to be conditions that we are just not aware of that will lead to those failures, and that's -- you know, we experience that in very real terms every day. 

     It might be worthwhile just to talk about a few examples of that, just to set the context for age-related failures and how they impact our operation and our customers specifically.  So I thought I might talk about a few examples.  

One that comes to mind, I was asked to meet with the CEO of one of our large power consumers because they had experienced over 20 interruptions about halfway through that year, and I was told that every interruption represented about a million dollars of lost production for them.  

     That customer is fed in one of our older areas of the city, and we have significant reliability problems.  There are a lot of equipment failures, a lot of asset age-related failures.  So for that customer that experience is very, very significant.

     MS. HELT:  That's fine.  I think I've got the answer to my question with respect to -- 

     MS. LONG:  Do you know go how much longer you are going to be?  

     MS. HELT:  Maybe this would be a time -- 

     MS. LONG:  I just wonder if this is an appropriate time for the break.  Mr. Keizer, we have some questions.  Otherwise I would let Ms. Helt continue, but I think your witness panel might want a break, as we do have some questions.  And then I expect you'll want some redirect maybe, so...

     MS. HELT:  And I think I'll be another 15 minutes. 

     MS. LONG:  Okay.  So I think it is probably best to take a 20-minute break now.  We'll be back at 11:20. 

     MR. KEIZER:  Thank you.  

     --- Recess taken at 10:56 a.m.



--- Upon resuming at 11:23 a.m.

MS. LONG:  Please be seated.

Ms. Helt?

     MS. HELT:  Yes.  Thank you, Madam Chair.  As I said before the break, I think I have about 15 minutes, if that, left.  

     Just one general question.  We have been referring to a number of graphs that show new assets and existing assets.  

I just wanted to ask generally:  Is the reference to "existing assets" there what you have in your current inventory?  These are your current assets that are reflected in the existing asset curves?  

     MR. OTAL:  I think what we mean by "existing assets" are the existing assets that are installed currently in our distribution system that are being evaluated.  

     MS. HELT:  All right.  That's what I thought.  I just wanted to make sure. 

     If I can make reference to the technical conference 

transcript, day 1, page 132, line 7 -- if you're having 

difficulty finding it, I can just read to you what it says -- oh, here you've got it.  All right.  

     So if we go to page 132, line 7, this is in response -- if you just go up the page a little bit, it is in response to a question from Mr. Zwarenstein about an indication of the variability of the shapes of the curves and what that variability stems from. 

     And at line 7, Toronto Hydro says:   

"To answer that question, we don't show any sort of variability or sensitivity to the economic end of life result, but I would say on a more broader basis, our AM planning process, because it is a multi-faceted approach, it's using a number of different decision support systems to arrive at our final decision-making accounts for those sensitivities..."

     Just where you say "a multi-faceted approach," can you 

identify what those facets are that lead to the same 

result of end-of-life?  

     MR. OTAL:  So if I can take you to Exhibit 2B, section D1, page 6, figure 2, just to clarify, when I'm saying it is a multi-faceted approach I am really referring to our asset management process.  And when we are making decisions on our assets and those decisions ultimately get translated into investment programs, you have the suite of decision support systems that are being used support our decision-making.  

So we have asset condition assessment, we have the feeder investment model, we have historical reliability data that is coming out of our interruption tracking information system for programs that are driven through capacity concerns, and we've got load forecasts processes.  

So there's a number of different processes and systems that are taking place here within our AM process that is allowing us to make a multi-faceted decision, essentially, or arrive at a decision through a number of different inputs.  

     MS. HELT:  Right.  Thank you.

If I could now turn to page 31 of our compendium -- page 30, actually.  I will be referring to 30 and 31. 

     This is IR response to 2B, Staff 39, appendix B.  It is really hard to read, but if we can look at station breakers, which is probably four-fifths down the page –- right.

     So if we look at "stations circuit breakers," B14, we will look at the column -- let me just see -- column F.  So we have -- first go to appendix B, so the next page, and go to the stations breakers again, and column F.  

     Here we see the total approved CAPEX for 2012 to 2014 -- again in column F -- is 3.94.  That's about four-fifths down the page.  

     Then if we look at the actual amount, which is in column K, we have 3.05.  

     So that then -- this chart indicates that it was 3.05 of the 3.93 million approved CAPEX has been spent; is that correct?  

     MS. ROUSE:  Yes, that's correct. 

     MS. HELT:  And then if we look at appendix A, the capital summary, it reflects in-service additions for B14, breakers, and we have 2.36 approved versus 1.6 actual.  

     So is it correct to say that it was expected that 2.36 

million would be placed in service in the period, but there was only 1.6 million actually in service?  Is that how I am to read that?  

     MS. ROUSE:  Yes.  At the time of the forecast, we had 2.36 that was planned to come into service, based on historical estimates of in-service additions, and that was the approved amount.  Of that, we're forecasting in this exhibit that 1.62 million would come into service. 

     MS. HELT:  Okay.  And so would it be correct to say that of the 3.3 million approved CAPEX, 1.6 million or more is remaining to be placed in service at the end of 2014?  

     MS. ROUSE:  Sorry, could you just repeat your question?

     MS. HELT:  That of the 3.3 -- 3.93 million approved CAPEX, 1.6 million or more is remaining to be placed in service at the end of 2014?  

     MS. ROUSE:  Yes, that's correct. 

     MS. HELT:  Okay.  And can you confirm that these numbers for the B14 program refer to the KSO breakers as well?  

     MR. SIMPSON:  Yes, confirmed.  

     MS. HELT:  Great.  Just some general high-level questions, then, on reporting issues.  

     Can THESL identify if and where in the application there might be an indication of how the Board in the coming years would be informed of ongoing progress towards completion of the programs which have been authorized?  

     MR. KEIZER:  Could you just repeat that question again?

     MS. HELT:  Yes.  Is there anywhere in the application that will assist the Board -- if there's some indication of how the Board in the coming years could be informed of ongoing progress towards completion of the programs which have been authorized?  

     MR. KEIZER:  I think -- 

     MS. LONG:  Ms. Helt, are you drawing a distinction between ICM programs and general capital programs?  

     MS. HELT:  General capital programs.  Correct. 

     MR. KEIZER:  I believe that that's a -- falls under the reporting area, which I think falls under the responsibility of panel 5.  

I myself can't pull up the exact evidence reference, but I think that would be appropriate. 

     MS. LONG:  Can we leave that for panel 5?  Mr. Keizer, you're making a note of that to be prepared for panel 5 to answer that question?  

     MR. KEIZER:  I am. 

     MS. HELT:  We can leave that to panel 5.  I think my next question, then, would also be for panel 5.  So if I could just have one moment... 

     Thank you.  Board Staff has no further questions. 

     MS. LONG:  Thank you, Ms. Helt.


The Panel has some questions for you, and we will start with Ms. Spoel. 

     QUESTIONS BY THE BOARD: 

     MS. SPOEL:  Thank you.  In your discussion with Ms. Girvan and Mr. Janigan about, I'm going to broadly say, metrics, but performance evaluation and so on, there were a couple of things that came up that I just wanted to get a little bit of clarification on. 

     One of them, Mr. Walker, you said -- it is on page 19 of the -- 119 of the transcript from day 4, but I don't think you need to turn it up. 

     You said:

"... we measure ourselves against [...] a project basis [...] against the detailed estimate.  And so we can look at [...] that discrete project level and say whether or not we're -- you know, we met what we intended to do and whether we met the spend or not." 

     What I am wondering is when you say "met the spend," does that mean that you came in under budget, over budget, on budget?  Like, what does meeting the -- I understand about getting the work done.  I think I know what that means, but I am not sure what you mean in the context of Toronto Hydro about "met the spend."  

     MR. WALKER:  Sure.  When we put together an estimate -- or project design maybe is an easier way to look at it -- there are elements to it.  There is the technical requirements, you know, the transformers, the wire, the cable that needs to be installed.  And then there is also the cost estimate around that, which is built up based on, you know, the materials that are issued to the job, the labour requirement and so on. 

     Our expectation is that we should be able to build that project, complete that project, for that amount of cost.  So we're looking at the scope of the work, but we're also looking at the cost to see if we are in fact meeting the design estimate.

That is what I meant by "the spend." 

     MS. SPOEL:  When you say meeting it, you mean coming in on or under budget?  

     MR. WALKER:  That's right, exactly.


MS. SPOEL:  Thank you.  I wanted to clarify that. 

     The other question, Mr. Janigan asked some questions about the amount of -- the percentage of your funds that you spend on engineering and design work and suggested that if the amount of money being spent on engineering and design spending was going down, that that might be a sign of efficiency. 

     And I just wondered whether you might agree with me that sometimes spending a little bit more on design upfront might result in spending less money on capital because you might do the work more efficiently installing it; is that something that Toronto Hydro looks at?  

     MR. WALKER:  Design -- the comparison between the cost of the design and the cost of the construction isn't necessarily linear, but yeah, if you do a better design or you do better engineering it is going to lead to a more optimal outcome, for sure. 

     MS. SPOEL:  I just wanted to clarify that.  Those are my questions. 

     MS. LONG:  Thank you.


Mr. Quesnelle?

     MR. QUESNELLE:  Thank you.  Just a few.  Maybe I will start with a clarification.  It is a follow-up to a clarification I was looking for earlier, but I just want to make sure I have got it right. 


Mr. Paradis, I asked you the other day about the inclusion of planned and unplanned -- sorry, planned and the -- it was the inclusion in a certain element -- I haven't gotten back to the evidence we were looking at, but of the unplanned outages and the supply side.  Lack of supply in a certain figure. 

     I just wondered -- what would that data be used for?  When you are including the, say -- correct myself again.  When you're including planned outages and loss of supply in the stats, what are you using that particular data set for?  

     MR. PARADIS:  Well, in the case of planned outage what it would be helpful in assessing is the general impact the programs that were we're executing is having on our overall system statistics. 

     So there would be some value in getting a sense for the level of activity and generally how much that level of activity is affecting the reliability statistics.


Another useful element there would be to consider how some of our new programs help us reduce that level of planned outages in executing our program. 

     So there might be instances where some programs introduce a certain level of ability to create workarounds, if you will, for execution of work, and so that would have potentially a downward impact on that trend.  So it would be value in that sense.


As far as assessing our asset base and the performance of our assets, we would generally exclude those and look at the other cost codes, in terms of evaluating the trends there. 

     MR. QUESNELLE:  And the same with the loss of supply in or out?  You talk about in or out depending on how you're -- 

     MR. PARADIS:  Yes, absolutely.  And for loss of supply -- and I believe Mr. Simpson could speak to that even further -- but it is certainly something that we track and is a key component of our interactions with Hydro One in cases where they have had detrimental impact on our performance.

And so that is our information base that we use for those conversations.  

     MR. QUESNELLE:  Okay.  And perhaps this is for you, Mr. Paradis, or Mr. Walker.  I'm not sure.  But I think you touched on it when you were talking about the monitoring or evaluating some of your programs to determine whether or not they're having a positive or negative effect on your planned outages. 

     Where would I see any description of how Toronto Hydro works, system design, the concerns for reliability into the 

system design to begin with?  Sectionalizing, how many customers are affected by switching operations, those types of things?

Because we have had, certainly, evidence in previous applications where you're having to change out whole asset bases, based on your lack of ability to sectionalize, bring it down to a smaller number of customers.


Where would I see a description of that, how you're approaching that?  

     MR. PARADIS:  Generally it is described in extensive detail in each of the specific programs. 

     MR. QUESNELLE:  Okay. 

     MR. PARADIS:  So as we did for the ICM period, we detail how the intervention we're proposing in each program will enhance our ability to address contingency circumstances. 

     So in cases such as the underground renewal program, we had talked about switchable transformers on certain loops, and that would help us with our contingency situation.  So that would be detailed specifically in that program. 

     In addition to that, we do have programs in the service area that are targeted to specifically enhance our ability to address contingency circumstances. 

     So our contingency enhancement program, for example, the proposed feeder automation also has a great impact on our ability to manage our contingencies.  So those details would be provided in that area as well. 

     MR. QUESNELLE:  Also the programs about removal of obsolete equipment?  

     MR. PARADIS:  Yes, similarly.  So all the programs would have -- the ones that do have a benefit in terms of contingency management, we provide all those details in each of the sections. 

     MR. QUESNELLE:  Okay.  Mr. Walker, with that in mind, I wonder if you could help me out, then.  There's something, an exchange you had with Mr. Brett yesterday, and I just wanted to drill down on it a little further to allow you to perhaps expand on it for my benefit a little more, is the -- talking about the forecast of reliability.

And you had mentioned that the forecasting are really:  Outcomes of the programs we want to achieve, and that it is not necessarily -- the goal itself is not reliability, but it is kind of a -- what comes out of our programs when we're trying to achieve other things, the reliability statistics just are a function of that.  We will take a look at what programs we have determined are necessary and mandatory -- I think you used the term -- and I think that was in relation to your access types of investments. 

     And I'm just trying to get a sense for it.  I take -- let's take safety right out of the equation.  And, you know --

     MR. WALKER:  Safety?  Sorry?

     MR. QUESNELLE:  Safety.  I'm going to take safety out, because I think -- and we have had these conversations over the years with Toronto Hydro, and I have got a pretty good sense of safety is built into your system.  That is a given.  You're going to have a safe system for your employees and the public. 

     So that has not -- sort of being a driver.  That is just an imperative, and I accept that.  I think we all accept that. 

     So given that imperative, what else do you do in investment planning, the programs you design, that has anything but reliability as the outcome?  I am not catching, with everything Mr. Paradis has just said -- what other outcome or goal could you have?  Or do you have, I should say.  

     MR. WALKER:  I think maybe it is a misunderstanding of what I was trying to get at at that point. 

     MR. QUESNELLE:  Okay. 

     MR. WALKER:  Reliability is, absolutely, you know, probably the biggest driver of our requirements.

What I was trying to suggest is that we didn't start with a number of SAIDI of 1.53 and then try to build a program that achieved that.  That wasn't the way we, you know, constructed our program. 

     We started with the assets and we looked at what the needs are, given the condition of those assets and the 

performance of those assets, and then we build a program that best addresses those issues.  And then the resulting SAIFI and SAIDI levels are the outcome of that. 

     We definitely -- you know, if we came up with a program that drove reliability to be worse, I think we would rethink that entire program.  That is not what we're intending to achieve.

But the numbers themselves are not what we're trying to reach.  We're trying to address the underlying problems that result in those reliability numbers. 

     And we have investments in our system service category that, while relatively small in spend, do have a large impact on reliability: putting reclosures in, increasing our operational flexibility, and so on. 

So, you know, we're definitely addressing that, but we –- 

MR. QUESNELLE:  That goes to the design concept of improving reliability by design?  

     MR. WALKER:  That's right, exactly.  But that was my point.  It's not like we were trying to achieve a particular number. 

     MR. QUESNELLE:  Understood.  One other thing -- and I think this is again for you, Mr. Walker.  You talked about the adjustment of the expectation of the useful life of power transformers, based on the more modern-day manufacturing technologies and the actual product that is being turned out and that's available from the transformer manufacturers. 

     And if I could just ask you to reconcile that concept with another kind of concept that you shared with us, as the looking at all of the components within an assembly.


I think the example you used was if you're going to be changing out a particular feeder, you have major components, and maybe it is the poles in this particular asset assembly that is driving the renewal of the whole assembly, and you might be a little premature on the power transformers, or vice versa, depending on what was driving it. 

     But while you're there, you're going to change everything.  You are not going to leave anything there that's a major component that has two years of expected life in the program. 

     Is there something that, when you look at the new age of the transformers, new expected life, is it fair to say -- well, two things. 

     How do you keep that assessment current, first of all?  

And I will ask you to -- do you have any connection 

feeding into the amortization schedules of the accounting 

department?  

I'm wondering what drives which here.  Is it the amortization for financial life, or is it the asset expectations that drives the amortization?  I'm suggesting that it should be the latter, but –- and I am thinking in particular -- and I don't know if you have this connection with your accounting -- is that the new requirements and capital assessments through IFRS to do an annual update of what your expected lives are of your major components, and how you arrive at 30 years as a go-forward estimate before you have lived with these new assets for very long.  

     MS. ROUSE:  I think I can answer that question for you.  So we did put forward in front of the Board our useful lives for the componentization in 2011.  At that time, they were approved. 

     We do review our depreciation and amortization policy annually; that is a finance policy. 

     And so if facts and circumstances do come to light that might change the useful life, then we will factor that in.

     An example might be the SMD switches under the ICM proceeding.  It wasn't a major component we had tracked previously.  So at that time, we would have looked at that asset and separated it out to be depreciated.  

     MR. QUESNELLE:  Well, that approach strikes me as one of building on your empirical knowledge that is built up over time.  

How is it, then, that you can do a projection -- or why would you bother doing a projection based on new transformer life?  

If it is having that impact and you are drawing that correlation, then fine.  But would that not be something you would do on a go-forward basis so the new transformers will eventually take down the overall group asset life, as opposed to re-targeting it at this juncture in anticipation of that happening?  

     It just strikes me, Ms. Rouse, that everything you just told me is, you know, fed by empirical knowledge.  

     This may not have any impact at all, but I should probably ask at the same time:  How does that new estimate of 30 years feed into your investment plan?  

     [Witness panel confers] 

      MR. WALKER:  If I can draw your attention to the tech 

conference, J1.7, and if we go to the second page, line 8, I think it is:  

"While capital costs and depreciation are expected to converge, this is not the same as saying that the Financial Useful Life of assets, (i.e. depreciation periods) will converge with their Economic End-of-Life values (i.e. optimal replacement time).  These two measures are fundamentally different." 

     So one is just really a financial treatment of the numbers, and the other is what we use in our planning and our work program development.  

     MR. QUESNELLE:  Have you analyzed why there is a difference?  

I recognize how you arrive at one, but if the financial requirement is to provide an estimate of when things are going to be taken out of service, why don't these two match?  

     [Witness panel confers] 

     MR. WALKER:  I guess for the purposes of depreciation, we're using the financial useful lives that were approved by the Board in 2011.  

     And for our engineering purposes, we're using the numbers that, you know, we've derived through our models and through our engineering analysis.  

     MR. QUESNELLE:  Thank you.  And just on that, I started the end of my question first, but I will go back to it. 

     Given the estimation and time of expected life under any measure on the power transformers, would it be appropriate to suggest that what you're really looking for is to have -- whenever you have an assembly of components that are all most efficiently changed out at the same time, that they all have the same expected life?  

     MR. WALKER:  And when you say "expected life," you mean the engineering expected life? 

     MR. QUESNELLE:  Yes.  You have concerns about the power transformers being of a lesser quality, therefore a shorter life.  

But if they will live as long as the pole, does it really matter?  Isn't that a better outcome in that they're slightly cheaper, but last exactly the same length as the pole they will be attached to?  Isn't that a better outcome?

     MR. WALKER:  It would be ideal if they really did line up that way, but that's not really what happens.

Poles will have a different, you know, serviceable life than transformers would, and I would rather that we know that than make those decisions on what we replace as an assembly -- to use your terms -- rather than artificially try to set them to be equal. 

     It really is driven by how the assets perform. 

     MR. QUESNELLE:  But that would be something that in your monitoring going forward, you would be looking to say:  Okay, what's the component that is driving out this assembly -- to use my term -- by tracking that? 

     MR. WALKER:  Absolutely, yes. 

     MR. QUESNELLE:   And then you could determine whether or not you want to ask the manufacturer to improve things, or just to leave them alone?  

     MR. WALKER:  That's right, and there is also a cost element to that.  

I mean, we could engineer these things to be a lot more robust, if you like, and last longer.  But there is a cost for that, obviously, and you have to determine whether that is worthwhile to specify a transformer of that level of robustness. 

     MR. QUESNELLE:  That goes to the last question I had, and it was something you mentioned earlier.  

In discussing the plans that you have looked at, the pacing of the plans, and you said:  Ideally, we would want to do -- take that whole 26 percent and eliminate it ASAP, can you define "ideal" to me?  I am not sure, given the -- in what world would that be ideal?  What is your notion of ideal on that?  

     MR. WALKER:  Well, as we said, the -- as an asset passes its expected useful life, it becomes more costly to manage over its lifecycle.  We start to have, you know, more failures, which means more reactive response, which tends to be very expensive. 

     If you replaced an entire subdivision's worth of assets on a reactive basis, it would be significantly more expensive than doing it on a planned basis in one effort.  So that drives up the long-term lifecycle cost of that 

asset class.  

     MR. QUESNELLE:  So if I could maybe state your comment a little differently, ideally you wouldn't find yourself in a situation where you have 26 percent?

     MR. WALKER:  Most definitely. 

     MR. QUESNELLE:  That's the ideal, then? 

     MR. WALKER:  Yes. 

     MR. QUESNELLE:  Now that you are here, there is a path out, and you have chosen the optimum one? 

     MR. WALKER:  That's right.  And that's why we want to eliminate the backlog and get to the so-called steady state eventually, because in that steady state theoretically we're not at that point; we don't have a backlog of assets.

     MR. QUESNELLE:  So to -- so the path out of where we are today, in your mind, is one that is optimum.  The optimization of that takes into consideration the extra costs that you're incurring because you are reacting, and -- what -- rates?  Or is that --

     MR. WALKER:  Yes, yes.  

     MR. QUESNELLE:  It's rates?  

     MR. WALKER:  Yes. 

     MR. QUESNELLE:  Thanks very much.  

     MS. LONG:  I just had one final question for the panel, and it is a bit of a process question.  I understand from the evidence that you have given that you are the individuals who are tasked with coming up with the capital plan, but I think what I also understood is beyond that point, when it actually comes to signing the contracts for how this work is going to be done, that that is the responsibility of other individuals, let's say your finance department. 

     But I guess I am wondering how does the actual cost of the project feed back to you.  You set out what the design should be, what the ultimate project should be.  Then it goes somewhere else, and I guess the cost is built up based on contracts that are entered into.  But does that come back to you, then?  And you revisit whether or not the cost is appropriate?  Do you re-look at the project that you have designed and say:  This is too much, this is fine?

Is there that next level of review that comes back to this panel?  

     MR. WALKER:  Yes, there is.  We have a change management process that we follow, if there's a variance that exceeds a certain threshold in the detailed estimate from the high-level estimate, for example, that triggers a requirement for a review, and that review goes back through our engineering group and ultimately -- again, depending on the threshold -- goes up for executive approval and sign-off.


Does that answer your question?  

     MS. LONG:  It does.  I guess I'm just -- I'm just wondering what happens if it doesn't go beyond a threshold.  There's a certain -- I don't know what the threshold is.  I don't need to know.  But is there a second look, or if it doesn't hit the threshold then it is good to go as far as you're concerned?  

     MR. WALKER:  Well, there is always an ongoing dialogue between our engineering group and our execution group.

We have a program management function that I actually used to be responsible for, that oversees the overall execution, the scheduling, the resourcing, all that kind of thing.  And they facilitate that discussion between engineering and the actual execution groups. 

     We don't typically -- we know that there is going to be a certain level of variance in any project from a high-level estimate to a detailed estimate, and even to some degree from detailed estimate to actuals. 

     So it's not efficient to, you know, review every dollar of variance, if you know what I mean, but -- 

     MS. LONG:  I guess I'm not talking so much about variances from what you plan to what you execute.  But I guess, Mr. Walker, if you determined that a project, you know, whatever project it is, you want to go ahead, and it comes back from finance that it's actually going to cost this amount and that is a surprise to you, are you doing a value judgment, I guess, as to whether or not:  Gee, maybe this is the wrong time?  This is -- I could scope this project down?

Are you making that assessment?  

     MR. WALKER:  Yes.  And I guess the threshold thing may be a bit misleading.  You know, if our high-level estimate called for 15 transformers in -- you know, constructing a new subdivision or replacing the assets in a subdivision, and the actual design came out with 16, you know, we're not going to have a big review over that.  That's an understood kind of variance that is going to happen when you get into detailed design.


But if, say, we called for transformer replacements and through the design and field input they came back and said:  We think the poles need to be replaced as well, that would definitely trigger a review and, you know, a change process, because that's a change in scope and intent of the original project.

So we would assess it on that basis. 

     MS. LONG:  Okay.  Thank you.  

     I think those are the Panel's questions.  So, Mr. Keizer, if you have any redirect?  


RE-EXAMINATION BY MR. KEIZER:

     MR. KEIZER:  I think I have been shut off.  There we go.  I just have, actually, one question in redirect, and it stems out of, I think, some cross-examination from my friends.

So it's been suggested, I think, by some through that cross that the capital program, which is currently five years, if it could be extended out to eight years, there has also been suggestions that if you take the first three years and, you know, only use that and extend that over five years, you can change the capital program. 

     And I know you have given evidence with respect to reassessment of the plan.  But I guess what I wanted to clarify is, if you were to adopt those approaches, in your view, how would -- how would those approaches affect the customers of Toronto Hydro?  

     MR. WALKER:  Well, given the level of assets that are past their end-of-life as it is today, we're seeing those effects very directly as, you know, as it affects our customers. 

     I've mentioned a couple of examples already where, you know, customers have suffered, and I've got many more that I could speak to.


The way I would characterize it is when I started at the Hydro, we used to have our crews organized in a group called construction and maintenance, and the reason we did that is their normal job would be to do capital construction, and they would be called away periodically if there was a reactive requirement, if something failed and it needed to be replaced, and then they would go back to their capital work. 

     Today, we have two departments and 13 full-time crews that do nothing but replacement of failing assets, and that's because of this age-related problem.  Those assets are past end-of-life and are failing at a significant rate.

And that's what we're trying to address in this plan.  It is something we need to address.

And if we were to take this plan and just spread it out over more years, that is going to become worse.  That's going to be a worse situation for our customers.  More of them are going to experience those failures. 

     And also, from a purely efficiency and cost perspective, the long-term cost of managing the system will go up, because rather than going out and replacing those assets today, let's say, we're going to incur another two or three years of reactive response, where we go out and replace bits and pieces of it and then have to go out and replace the whole thing at that point. 

     So it becomes very inefficient from a cost perspective.  But from the customer's perspective, it is, you know, it's -- I had an example of a single customer whose service was down for ten days.  He had an underground service wire into his house that was down for ten days because it failed.  We came out, we repaired it.  It failed again.  We came out again and repaired it again. 

     And, you know, we had crews there day and night and on the weekend, and we could not re-energize that service.  So we ultimately had to replace that individual's service.  But you know that if his service is -- was reacting that way, the other services in that area are of the same vintage, the same type of cable, and the same ground conditions, the same loading conditions and so on.  They're going to have the same sort of effect, and we'll be sending crews out there over and over and over again until we go out and address the underlying problem. 

     MR. KEIZER:  Can I just have a moment?  

     Those are my questions.  

     MS. LONG:  Thank you, Mr. Keizer. 

     Thank you very much, panel, for your evidence.  You are excused. 


[Panel 1 withdraws]

     MS. LONG:  Mr. Keizer, do you have panel 3 here ready to go? 

     MR. KEIZER:  We do. 

     MS. LONG:  Okay.  Then I would like to get them started before lunch.

     MS. LONG:  Ms. Helt, while we are getting organized, who is going to lead off on cross?  

     MS. HELT:  Mr. Janigan from VECC.  

     MR. JANIGAN:  I would advise, Madam Chair, that my 

cross-examination has been greatly shortened.  I don't expect to be more than 20 minutes, if that. 

     MS. LONG:  Okay.  Thank you.  I see your compendium here, so I was just wondering if you were going first.  I wasn't sure.  

     Do you have one, Mr. Janigan, for this panel, or am I looking at an old one?  Or is this a compilation of all your materials?

     MR. JANIGAN:  It is the little one with a "3" at the top.  Everyone should have it. 

     MS. HELT:  We can mark this now, if you'd like, as an 

exhibit, K6.1.

EXHIBIT NO. K6.1:  VECC CROSS-EXAMINATION COMPENDIUM FOR PANEL 3.  

     MR. KEIZER:  Madam Chair, I think we're all seated now.  

It's my pleasure to introduce panel number 3.  Perhaps I could introduce the panel members, and ask them to be affirmed. 

     First, seated closest to the dais, is Mr. Charles 

Floriano.  Next to Mr. Floriano is miss Wendy Cheah, and then next to Ms. Cheah is Owen Nash.  If I could ask that  they be affirmed?

TORONTO HYDRO-ELECTRIC SYSTEM LTD. - PANEL 3


Owen Nash, Affirmed

Charlie Floriano, Affirmed

Wendy Cheah, Affirmed

EXAMINATION-IN-CHIEF BY MR. KEIZER:

     MR. KEIZER:  So if I may, I just have a very brief direct examination.  

     Starting first with you, Mr. Floriano, you are the 

director, application services; is that correct?  

     MR. FLORIANO:  That's correct. 

     MR. KEIZER:  And could you briefly explain the scope of your responsibilities at Toronto Hydro?

     MR. FLORIANO:  Sure.  I am responsible for the applications at Toronto Hydro, both from an end-user, within Toronto Hydro employees, and a customer perspective.  

     So my group supports the applications that those groups use.  

     MR. KEIZER:  When you say "applications," what do you mean by "applications"?

     MR. FLORIANO:  IT applications.  So all of the business applications that we use to run our operations. 

     MR. KEIZER:  Could you also just explain or advise the Board as to your areas of responsibility with respect to the evidence that's been filed in this proceeding?

     MR. FLORIANO:  Sure.  I'm responsible for the IT capital program, the IT OM&A, and the ERP program.  

     MR. KEIZER:  And next, Ms. Cheah, you are manager, finance, distribution operations; is that correct?  

     MS. CHEAH:  That's correct. 

     MR. KEIZER:  And could you briefly explain the scope of your responsibilities at Toronto Hydro? 

     MS. CHEAH:  I am predominantly responsible to support the electric operations and procurement and the engineering construction divisions at Toronto Hydro, and I also oversee the capital planning and reporting.  

     MR. KEIZER:  And could you also explain your areas of 

responsibility with respect to the evidence that's filed in this proceeding?

     MS. CHEAH:  Specifically, I'm here to represent revenue offsets, the street lighting asset transfer, and also to support my colleagues here with respect to their business cases for the OCCP and ERP.  

     MR. KEIZER:  And also you mentioned specific service charges; is that correct?  

     MS. CHEAH:  Specific service charges, yes.  

     MR. KEIZER:  And you, Mr. Nash, you are director, operation support services; is that correct?  

     MR. NASH:  That's correct.  

     MR. KEIZER:  And could you briefly explain the scope of your responsibilities at Toronto Hydro?  

     MR. NASH:  Yes.  My group looks after all of the procurement and warehousing functions for Toronto Hydro.  That would include all of the RFP processes and contract work that we do, as well as our fleet and equipment services department that looks after all of the trucks and vehicles that we use, as well as facilities and facilities maintenance, which would include both the capital and operating expenditures around facilities.  

     MR. KEIZER:  And could you also explain your areas of 

responsibility with respect to the evidence filed in this 

proceeding?

     MR. NASH:  Sure.  From a capital perspective, looking at areas such as fleet and facilities in our OCCP program that we have in evidence, as well as from an OM&A perspective around our supply chain fleet and facilities departments as well. 

     MR. KEIZER:  And I will actually ask this, I guess, pose this question to each of you at once, and then ask you to respond in turn. 

     For purposes of this proceeding, do you adopt the evidence which includes those exhibits, interrogatories, technical conference undertakings, that are set out in Exhibit OH, tab 1, schedule 1, which is this detailed chart setting out all of the panellists and the witnesses, which I know you have seen, as well as the responses given by you at the technical conference in this proceeding?  

     MR. FLORIANO:  Yes. 

     MS. CHEAH:  I do. 

     MR. NASH:  Yes, I do. 

     MR. KEIZER:  Thank you.

Madam Chair, those are my questions in direct.  

     MS. LONG:  Thank you, Mr. Keizer.

Mr. Janigan, would you like to begin your cross-examination?  

     MR. JANIGAN:  Thank you very much, Madam Chair. 

CROSS-EXAMINATION BY MR. JANIGAN:

      MR. JANIGAN:  Panel, I would like to start with the 

operating centres consolidation program, the OCCP. 

     And as I understand it, under the OCCP you're going to close four facilities and open a new one at 715 Milner?

     MR. NASH:  We actually will be terminating two leases that we currently have, one at 601 Milner Avenue and one at 6 Monogram Place.  

     We will be disposing of two properties in terms of sale at 5800 Yonge Street and 28 Underwriters, and we will be adding two new facilities.  One would be 715 Milner, or renovating that to make that a useful facility, as well as we purchased a west end facility to replace Monogram, which is 71 Rexdale Boulevard.  

     MR. JANIGAN:  Okay.  And in my compendium, it reproduces some evidence that you filed at Exhibit 2B, section 8.3, at page 4 and following. 

     I would like to explore some of the evidence on avoided costs that you have filed in relation to the OCCP. 

     On page 6 of that compendium, for 5800 Yonge Street, it shows the average avoided costs, operational costs of 1.59 million over five years of the rate period.  

     Can I clarify?  Is this the OM&A costs that you will be saving over that period?  That is 843,2015, 1.722 million in 2016, et cetera?  

     MS. CHEAH:  Yes, that's correct.  That is the average 

savings. 

     MR. JANIGAN:  Okay.  These are OM&A costs that you will be saving over that period of time?  

     MS. CHEAH:  That is correct. 

     MR. JANIGAN:  How was this number calculated?  

     [Witness panel confers] 

     MR. NASH:  The OM&A costs to support that facility around facilities maintenance -- whether it be landscaping, security, our utility costs, as well as taxes -- would all be part of those OM&A costs to support that facility.  

     MR. JANIGAN:  Okay.  And is that the same methodology used for calculation of the avoided costs for Underwriters, 601 Milner and the Monogram property?  

     [Witness panel confers] 

     MR. NASH:  The only difference we would see is in Monogram and Milner; those are leased facilities, so those costs of the leases.  

At 5800, we currently own that property.  The only 

difference would be the lease charges for Milner and Monogram. 

     MR. JANIGAN:  Okay.  Thank you.  If I add up the average 2015 to 2019 avoided operational savings for each of the four properties, I get a number of about $7.5 million; is that correct?  

     [Witness panel confers]

MR. NASH:  The calculation that we looked at earlier was closer to actually $9 million, in terms of savings. 

     MR. JANIGAN:  Okay.  Well, we have the -- I am just using the average numbers here.  That may be the difference between why the 9 million and 7 and a half million.

But just using the average numbers, I have 58 -- I have 1.59 for Yonge, 2.298 for Milner, 782,000 for Underwriters, and 2.834 for the remaining property at Monogram. 

     I'm using the average.  I think I got a number of 7,504,000.  


[Witness panel confers]

     MR. NASH:  Subject to check, but those numbers look fairly accurate.  

     MR. JANIGAN:  And that's what you're saying you will save in OM&A cost each year on average for each of the five years of the plan?  

     MR. NASH:  It would be an average cost, given that the timing of the property disposition and removing of the leases varies.  So that would be strictly an average. 

     MR. JANIGAN:  Okay.  And if I understand the tables for 2015, OM&A will be lower by -- for 5800 Yonge, that is 843,000, for 601 Milner, 2.298 million, for 28 Underwriters, 782,000, and for 6 Monogram, 2.834 million; is that correct?

MS. CHEAH:  I don't believe that is correct.  

     MR. JANIGAN:  Okay. 

     MS. CHEAH:  For 601 Milner, there is no savings stated for 2015.  I believe the number that was read was the average for the five years. 

     MR. JANIGAN:  Okay. 

     MS. CHEAH:  That would also be similar for the 6 Monogram location as well. 

     MR. JANIGAN:  Okay.  So for the chart, with respect to Milner, there is nothing for operational savings for the -- for 2015.  So in effect, apart from Milner's -- the subtraction of Milner from that, I assume that the total figure would -- means that OM&A would have been higher by that amount but for your implementation of OCCP.  

     MR. NASH:  That would also hold true for Monogram as well, though. 

     MR. JANIGAN:  Okay.  Now, Toronto Hydro had a consultant firm review your OCCP plan; is that correct?  That was Bennet, Cresda & Allsteel? 

     MR. NASH:  That's correct.  And their scope was to look at the current state versus the future state of the OCCP and look at the utilization of our facilities, in terms of how we were improving the use of those facilities over time.  

     MR. JANIGAN:  And as I understand it, the report basically concluded that you will be reducing costs and space, so support your decision -- it supports your decision at least with respect -- at least with respect to that?  

     MR. NASH:  That's correct. 

     MR. JANIGAN:  On page 12 of my compendium, I've set out in page 5 of that report the -- their chart with the total annual costs and total office annual costs.  

     Can you tell us the difference between those columns and costs?  

     MR. NASH:  The total annual cost would be for the two columns that show office and non-office area, to come up with a total area.  So non-office areas would be areas like our fleet areas, parking garage areas, warehouse facilities and so forth.  Those would be non-office areas -- 

     MR. JANIGAN:  Okay. 

     MR. NASH:  -- as opposed to a standard office where office employees would work.  So the total area sums those two up.


Then what they have done is show the total annual costs of both the non-office and office area, and then just broken out the office annual costs as a separate column. 

     MR. JANIGAN:  Okay.  If we take 5800 Yonge Street, it shows total annual costs of $2,248,031 for both total annual costs and the office annual costs.  

     Can you explain how these costs are comparable to the avoided costs that are shown on table 5 for 5800 Yonge Street?  That is on page 6 of my compendium.  


[Witness panel confers]

     MS. CHEAH:  So the figures that are shown on page 12 of your compendium would reflect the total costs allocated for the facilities operations to each of the buildings, inclusive of their direct costs, which, on page 6 of your compendium, the avoided costs for 5800 Yonge and for the other buildings are direct -- direct costs associated with the operations of those buildings.  

     MR. JANIGAN:  Okay.  Which is the most accurate representation of avoided costs?  

     MS. CHEAH:  The most accurate representation would be the tables.  Specific for 5800 Yonge would be table 5 on page 17 of our OCCP plan.  

     MR. JANIGAN:  Okay.  And so there -- sorry if I am a bit thick here, but is it the case that the difference between the total annual cost that is shown on page 12 and the avoided costs of page 6 comprehends costs that are continuing to be -- continuing to be spent by Toronto Hydro?

MS. CHEAH:  I think that would be accurate.  The costs that are not reflected in the avoided costs are the indirect costs associated with running the facilities department and division at Toronto Hydro. 

     So though not being direct costs to each of the buildings, it is required to have the back office of, you know, Mr. Nash's group to support the overall facilities within Toronto Hydro.  

     MR. JANIGAN:  Okay.  So those costs would be -- would be transferred in their allocation to another site?  

     MS. CHEAH:  Yes, it would be spread across the facilities.  

     MR. JANIGAN:  Okay.  And at the conclusion of the report it states that the annual cost -- on page 13, that the annual cost per occupant will be reduced from $7,492 to $5,760. 

     How does this number compare with the 7.5 million in annual OM&A costs that you expect to save from this program?

MR. NASH:  The math that you laid out earlier in terms of the reduction of OM&A costs, one thing that this report does conclude, on page 13 of your compendium, where you see the total cost in bullet number 3 reducing from 19.9 million to 13.1 million, the 71 Rexdale property actually has to go back into the math that we did earlier. 

     So that is how we get back to the $13.1 million.  Those math calculations then go down to your annual cost per occupant, in terms of the reduction of that.  

     MR. JANIGAN:  Some $7,492 to $5,760 per occupant?  

     MR. NASH:  That's correct.  On the same -- part of the 

evidence to this appendix that you are showing, the 

Cresa report, on page 14 of the report, the table lays out the cost differences per occupant to show those numbers.  

     MR. JANIGAN:  I wonder if you could turn up page 14 of my compendium.  

This shows an OM&A per customer calculation on appendix 2-L, and it shows that from the last rebasing year up to the 2015 test year, that, apart from the 2012 actuals, the numbers seem fairly stable up until the 2015 test year.  

     Can you explain why 2015 seems be to be a bit of an outlier?  

     MR. KEIZER:  I think this is a question that's best placed with panel 4, which has responsibility for that evidence and is related to human resources, financial and customer care, so where the OM&A matters would be dealt with.  

     MR. JANIGAN:  Okay.  Has Toronto Hydro done an analysis that shows a relationship between its capital spending and its OM&A spending?  

     MR. KEIZER:  I'm not sure that this fits into this panel either.  Maybe it is a question for panel 4 or panel 5, but I am not sure if it fits within the context of this panel.  

     MS. LONG:  Do you want to rephrase that question, Mr. 

Janigan?  

     MR. JANIGAN:  Well, I'm looking at OM&A and trying to 

establish what the relationship is between the capital spending of Toronto Hydro and its OM&A spending, and whether or not there has been an analysis done that connects the two.  

     MS. LONG:  Capital spending?

     MR. JANIGAN:  Capital spending and OM&A spending.  When capital spending goes up, what is the relationship, what is the -- what are the trends that are associated with OM&A spending as a result of that increase in capital spending?  Or is there is no link at all?  

     MR. KEIZER:  Well, we had gone through a series of questions with panel 1 about the relationship between the capital plan and the implications for corrective maintenance, and other types of maintenance costs with respect to OM&A.  

Then there is OM&A generally, if you are looking at it from other elements of OM&A, because there is other categories that fit within that, obviously.

But I think that in that general type of question, I think the OM&A panel or panel 4 would be the best place to 

start, if looking at it -- other general categories, other than preventative and corrective maintenance, that we've already discussed in panel 1. 

     MR. JANIGAN:  I don't want to make this question deeper than it is.  It is, in effect, whether or not any analysis has been done in relation to the impact overall of capital spending on OM&A spending over the years. 

     MR. KEIZER:  No, I understand your question.  I just don't think that these witnesses are best placed to answer that question. 

     MR. JANIGAN:  That's fine.  That's fine.  I'm happy to put it to another -- those questions to another panel.  

     And with that, Madam Chair, I believe that concludes my questions for this panel.  Thank you very much.  

     MS. LONG:  Thank you, Mr. Janigan.

Ms. Helt, who is going to go next?  

     MS. HELT:  Board Staff has about ten minutes, so I can go next.  I believe after that it's Energy Probe, and the time estimate for Energy Probe is 30 minutes.  

     So whatever you prefer, Madam Chair.  

     MS. LONG:  Mr. Faye, are you prepared to go now for 30 

minutes?  

     MR. FAYE:  Yes, Madam Chair. 

     MS. LONG:  Then we would take our break in 30 minutes.  I think that is probably better.  


Mr. Faye:  Thank you, Madam Chair.

     CROSS-EXAMINATION BY MR. FAYE:  

     MR. FAYE:  Panel, I want to start by asking you some questions about the transfer of the street lighting assets from Toronto Hydro Energy Corp. 

     If I understand the evidence, THESL would like the Board to vary the approved transfer value of these assets from about $28 million to about $39 million; is that generally correct?  

     MS. CHEAH:  That is correct. 

     MR. FAYE:  Okay.  And the revised value is based on a number of studies undertaken by THESL and your consultants to better define the age of the assets being transferred, and therefore potentially their value; is that also pretty correct?  

     MS. CHEAH:  The update that's being submitted is also 

inclusive of the natural evolution of the assets, as the decision was given in 2011. 

     Four years have transpired since then, so the natural evolution of the assets have been also incorporated into the transfer value, alongside with some updates to our initial assets transferred as approved in the decision.  

     MR. FAYE:  Okay.  I just want to make sure I understand what natural evolution is.  Is that just depreciation?

     MS. CHEAH:  That would also include additions throughout the 2012 to 2014 year, and also -- actually, the 2011 year.  I stand corrected. 

     MR. FAYE:  And that's additions made by Toronto Hydro 

Distribution after you took over operation of that system?  

     MS. CHEAH:  In 2011, it still remained with the affiliate.  So the assets that were acquired under the affiliate in 2011, and then from 2012 through to 2014, yes, the assets that were put into service by Toronto Hydro.  

     MR. FAYE:  Okay.  Does that include all of the handwells that you have rehabbed over that period of time?  

     MS. CHEAH:  Yes, it would.  

     MR. FAYE:  Okay.  I will think about that as I progress through this. 

     There's a fair bit of evidence, a fair bit of discussion in the evidence about poles.  Do the value of the poles represent a significant amount of the additional 10 or $11 million you're looking for?  

     MS. CHEAH:  Yes.  

     MR. FAYE:  Okay.  So as I understand the evidence, there was a lack of records kept as to when poles were installed, and the early estimates sort of excluded a lot as being pre-1971 and so fully depreciated.  

And then further studies were done and records 

either were discovered or new data was collected that caused you to change your mind about some of those poles that you had discounted in the first valuation round. 

     Is that fairly accurate?  

     MS. CHEAH:  Sorry, could you repeat your question?  

     MR. FAYE:  Yes.  Maybe I will try to do it a little more concisely than that question was.  

     As I understood the evidence, in the first round of valuation that resulted in the Board's decision that it was worth about $28 million, Toronto Hydro and Toronto Hydro Energy didn't have records good enough.  

So they just took a whole bunch of poles and said:  Well, they're pre-1971, so there is zero dollars left on the books for them. 

     And then subsequent to that, either new studies or new records or old records were discovered that led you to believe that some of those poles that you had discounted as having no value actually were put in after 1971, and therefore still had some book value.  

Have I summarized that reasonably good?  

     MS. CHEAH:  I believe that is one of the many factors for our new valuation that we're presenting.  Poles, yes, is a significant value.  

     But there are other factors in the simplification of the assumptions that were made in the original valuation 

that, once a detailed analysis was performed, we uncovered that there was other factors that needed to be considered in order for us to be in compliance for transferring our assets at the cost base for the actual legal transfer into THESL.  

     MR. FAYE:  At the risk of getting into an IFRS discussion here, could you summarize concisely what those other factors were?  

     MS. CHEAH:  So presented in our evidence, we identify that the asset classes that were identified in the original study weren't consistent, they weren't a one-for-one match in our financial records. 

     So for instance, in our original valuation we had assigned depreciated replacement cost for handwells, poles and foundation, but in Toronto Hydro's -- in the affiliate's records all those three asset classes were pooled together in a pool, in the pole asset classification. 

     Also, in the ValuQuest study, conductors were identified as one asset class, while in the affiliate it was identified as underground and overhead conductors. 

     So from that perspective, when we tried to transfer the assets from an accounting perspective, the ability to do so required us to actually go into the detailed analysis to break out the value of those assets from our financial records.  

     MR. FAYE:  Okay.  Good.  That was simpler than I feared it might be.  

     So going back to the case of poles, I understand in the evidence -- and perhaps we could pull this one up.  It is Exhibit 2A, tab 5, schedule 1, page 10.  

     If we look down to line 14, Toronto Hydro Energy revalued what the poles were worth on the basis of a study by ValuQuest.  And if I understand lines 21 to 26, ValuQuest started with an average price, an average value of a new pole of $2,340; is that right?  

     MS. CHEAH:  That was the standard cost applied, yes. 

     MR. FAYE:  Okay.  Then they deflated it by taking the consumer price index and sort of backing out the effect of 

inflation back to the vintage you were looking for.

So if it was a 1980-vintage pole, it would back out the inflation would have occurred from 1980 to present day, and apply that to the 2,340 and come up with what the value of that pole would have been in 1980?  

     MS. CHEAH:  ValuQuest did not deflate our numbers. 

What they had presented was the replacement cost of the assets that were to be transferred.  So --

     MR. FAYE:  Yes, I understand that, and I'm sorry if I misspoke.  I understand Toronto Hydro Energy did that deflation analysis, not ValuQuest.

ValuQuest came up with the 2,340.  TH Energy used that to deflate it back to the vintage year you were looking for, right?  

     MS. CHEAH:  That would be correct. 

     MR. FAYE:  Okay.  So my first question here is:  The 2,340, is that an all-in cost?  That is, material and the cost also to put the pole in the ground?  

     MS. CHEAH:  From my recollection, yes, that is the all-in cost. 

     MR. FAYE:  And it would cover a range of pole types; like, you have concrete poles, you have wood poles.  This is a general average of all kind of poles you might have had street lighting on?  

     MS. CHEAH:  I would have to validate that, but we used the average standard cost for our calculations.

     MR. FAYE:  Could you undertake to just provide the detail of, you know, is this all kinds of poles that street lighting would be on, all sizes, all classes, and just clarify what the basis of the $2,340 is?  

     MS. CHEAH:  Yes, I can do that.  

     MS. HELT:  That will be Undertaking J6.3. 

UNDERTAKING NO. J6.3:  TO CONFIRM WHETHER IT IS ALL POLE TYPES, SIZES AND CLASSES USED FOR STREET LIGHTING THAT FORM THE BASIS FOR THE $2,340 ALL-IN COST.  

     MR. FAYE:  Then looking at the methodology that was used, do you have evidence that would support that the CPI is an accurate indicator of how poles have increased in value from vintage years to present day?  

     MS. CHEAH:  No.  

     MR. FAYE:  Well, I guess the point is fairly obvious.  How is the Board to have confidence that deflating them by the CPI arrives at a reasonable original cost for the pole in a vintage year?  

     MS. CHEAH:  Just for my -- just for clarification, the original poles that were acquired from the city of Toronto, they made up approximately, I believe, $24 million of the $60 million purchase price.  And it was those poles that we did not have depreciated historical -- depreciated historical costs for.  And it was that $24 million that we were trying to ascertain the vintage values for, those poles.  

     So there was already a deemed cost associated to those poles.  It was the allocation to those vintage classes using the data available to us from our records.  

     MR. FAYE:  Okay.  Let me just make sure I understand that.  You knew that the book value was 24 million, and at what point in time was that book value?  

     MS. CHEAH:  That purchase price would have been effective 2006.  

     MR. FAYE:  2006?  And that's when TH Energy bought the 

system back from the city?  

     MS. CHEAH:  Correct. 

     MR. FAYE:  Is that right?  Okay.

So what was on the books at that time was 24, and now you are looking for a way of distributing that 24 million among various asset classes.  As you described, they were all mixed up together.

Is that all that is happening here?  

     MS. CHEAH:  Specifically, it was for the poles.  

     MR. FAYE:  For the poles?  Okay.  Let me start again, then.

You know the poles that came over on the books were still worth $24 million.  Right?  

     MS. CHEAH:  The cost base of -- yes, the poles that were acquired in 2006 would have had a value of $24 million.

MR. FAYE:  And that's with depreciation deducted from original capital value from the time they were put in?  

     MS. CHEAH:  That was the assigned purchase price that Toronto -- TH Energy -- 

     MR. FAYE:  I'm trying to get at:  If you knew what the depreciated value was, what's the issue?  Why did you have to deflate anything?  

     MS. CHEAH:  Again, that was the purchase price of the assets from the city of Toronto.  So at that point in time all the -- all the poles that were acquired from the city in 2006 would have been assigned that cost base.  

     So at that point in time, as TH Energy would have taken those assets onto their books, there would have been no opening accumulated depreciation on TH Energy's books.  

     MR. FAYE:  All right.  So now the issue is:  What are they worth when you transfer them over to Toronto Hydro Distribution?  Right?  It isn't 24 million; it is something other than 24 million.  Is that the issue?  

     MS. CHEAH:  The issue would be, pole by pole, the value of the poles being transferred from TH Energy to Toronto Hydro.  

     MR. FAYE:  Okay.  Let's leave this deflation thing, because it is confusing me.  

     Let me ask you about ValuQuest.  Was it ValuQuest that did some sort of a study to ascertain that some of the poles were planted after 1971, not pre-'71, or was that a different consultant?  

     MS. CHEAH:  That would have been a different consultant that worked with Toronto Hydro staff. 

     MR. FAYE:  Can you describe how they did that study?  Did someone go out in the field and start looking at poles and look for date stamps such as that?  

     MS. CHEAH:  My understanding is they took the records available in Toronto Hydro -- in TH Energy's records and did validations in the field, yes.  

     MR. FAYE:  Okay.  So they went out in the field and looked at pole -- tried to read off what the date on the pole was, and by that means they came up with a new class of poles that were post-'71. 

     Now, have you ever gone out and tried to look for a date stamp on a pole?  Just so I understand if you know what this involves.


MS. CHEAH:  I personally have not. 

     MR. FAYE:  Okay.  Subject to check -- you can check this with your technical people -- it very difficult to see date stamps on poles.  Wooden poles tend to get weathered off.  Concrete poles, most of them don't even have a date stamp on them. 

     So when you do that kind of a study, I would suggest that all you can do is pick a few poles at random and hope to come into -- hope to find a date stamp, and then assume that everything in that vicinity is the same date.  

     And in that case, I wonder if the conclusion that a lot of these poles were newer than you thought might be incorrect.  

     MR. KEIZER:  Well, since she has personally not done the exercise, I don't know if it is fair to ask her to reach that conclusion based on that proposition.  

     MR. FAYE:  I suppose it is probably going to go to argument, but I wonder if there is anyone on the panel that would be able to comment on the fact that dates on poles are not really that obvious.  

They're hard to find; most of them are weathered 

off.  And the ones that you do find tend to be newer poles that were replaced, and not indicative of the general population.  

     MR. KEIZER:  Well, first of all, I think that is your 

statement and you are not giving evidence here with respect to that, so --

     MR. FAYE:  No.  What I'm trying to ascertain here is:  Is there an undertaking that you could take to go back to your consultant and determine whether those are valid, legitimate questions or not?  Do they have an explanation for why their field investigation is legitimate enough to cause an increase in the value of the transfer?

     MR. KEIZER:  Can I just have a moment?  

     I guess I would ask Ms. Cheah to comment with respect to the study and the basis of it.  I think it was actually filed previously before the Board.  

     MS. CHEAH:  The study that was conducted in the original decision, that study was -- 

     MR. KEIZER:  Why don't we do this?  From what I have been advised, Toronto Hydro can go back and consider, on a best-efforts basis, as to whether it can consider the issue raised by Mr. Faye and the clarification that he requires. 

     If we can advise with respect to that, we will.  If we can't, we will explain why we can't.  

     MR. FAYE:  I can suggest a better means.  Could you just submit the study that was done and I will read it?  

     MR. QUESNELLE:  I am sensing, Mr. Keizer, through the Chair here, that –- I'm sensing a little bit of a disconnect, and perhaps your understanding of an earlier answer, Mr. Faye.



If I could just ask Ms. Cheah to elaborate on an answer she gave earlier, I think $24 million was the assessed value of the transfer in 2006.  Have I got that right?  

     MS. CHEAH:  The $24 million related to the poles that were purchased in 2006 from the city. 

     MR. QUESNELLE:  Could you describe the method that that valuation was arrived at?  I think you're saying cost, but it wasn't a cost-based evaluation, as I recall.  

     I seem to believe it was future valuation or future 

revenue streams that was arrived at to assess that value; have I got that right?  

     MS. CHEAH:  That is correct. 

     MR. QUESNELLE:  Yes.  So if that changes your line of 

questioning, Mr. Faye -- this isn't a correction to one historic costing approach to another evaluation. 

 
The $24 million was arrived at as an evaluation of 

future revenue streams; it wasn't an asset-base costing. 

     So if that was a disconnect -- and I don't mean to do your analysis for you, but I kind of sense that perhaps you were working on an assumption this was -- the original 24 million had some sort of cost valuation component.  

     MR. FAYE:  Thank you.  I was operating on that assumption.  


Now that you say it was the present value or future revenue stream, then --

     MR. QUESNELLE:  I am asking; I am not saying.  I am 

asking for that -- you know, that was a recollection of mine. 

     MR. FAYE:  I think the witness has confirmed that is the case.

     MR. QUESNELLE:  Yes.  

     MS. CHEAH:  Correct.  

     MR. FAYE:  Okay.  So at the risk of re-treading this ground, that would mean that the asset age and depreciated value really played no part in this.  

     If the Board has accepted that the value should be based on the present value of a future revenue stream, without regard to whether the assets are fully depreciated, is there any issue?  

     For instance, why do you have to know whether the poles were planted pre-1971, if the model that you are using to value the asset base doesn't have anything to do with the age or class or size or type of any of these assets?  

     MS. CHEAH:  After Toronto Hydro purchased the assets, for our financial records, when new information became available with regards to the age and vintage of the assets, we took it -- because it was new information to us, we did use that information to reset the remaining useful lives of our asset base. 

     MR. FAYE:  Okay.  So that's how we get into there's still some book value left on these things.  

Irregardless of how they might have been valued on a future revenue stream, you say the value should be based on the remaining economic life of the asset; is that right?  

     MS. CHEAH:  Because the asset transfer was required by a pole-by-pole, asset-by-asset basis, we did need to determine the net book value of those assets being transferred.  

And with new information of the age and vintage of the assets, that is where the differential in the -- part of the differential in the valuation occurred.  

     MR. FAYE:  Okay.  I think there is enough on the 

record for me to argue what I think is the issue, and the Board to attach whatever merit they want to that.

     I have one small area I wanted to ask about, and it has to do with transport and work equipment.  Specifically, there's been press lately from the TTC on perhaps some lapses in managing the use of company credit cards. 

     I wanted to ask what Toronto Hydro's policy is.  First, do you issue company credit cards to your staff to fuel and repair your vehicles?  

     MR. NASH:  Less than 25 percent of our vehicles actually utilize a credit card system.  Maybe it would help if I gave you a bit of an explanation as to how we actually fuel our vehicles, to eliminate some of the concern you may have heard recently in the news. 

     At the Commissioners Street facility, which has about 50 percent of our fleet, we actually have a fuelling island there.  That fuelling island dispenses both diesel and unleaded fuel.      

There is a RFID tag-type system attached to all of the vehicles, so that when you pull up to the fuel island, you have to scan the RFID tag that is on the vehicle.  That will then allow you to dispense fuel into the vehicle.  

If you don't scan that tag, the system is inoperable; it will not allow you to dispense that fuel. 

     At Milner and Monogram -- that would make up the other 50 percent of our fleet -- all of the diesel vehicles are actually fuelled in a truck-to-truck situation through a contractor that we have, that does the fuel at night when the vehicles are idle. 

     And only the unleaded vehicles that are at Milner and 

Monogram have that credit card.  The reason being is you legally -- legally you can dispense diesel truck-to-truck, but you cannot unleaded fuel.  So that is why we use the credit card systems for Milner and Monogram.  

Those credit cards, however, are not standard credit cards.  They are a fuel-type credit card only.  You cannot buy fuel and then go into the convenience store and buy 

chips and chocolate bars on that credit card.  It is specifically meant just for fuel. 

     Also, there are limits on the fuel dispensing in terms of litres and dollars that you can use on those cards.  And every month, those statements are sent to the supervisors of those crews and the managers or directors of those departments, to make sure that they go through and audit those. 

     The other information we get is any weekend or after-hour fuelling, that actually gets flagged in our reports that we send out as well, to see if somebody fuelled after regular Toronto Hydro hours.  Then you would definitely -- the manager or director would check into why that fuelling was done.  They may have been out on an emergency situation. 

     MR. FAYE:  Okay.  Thank you.  It doesn't sound like you have the same sort of problems that the TTC has.

And that is all of my questions.  Thank you, Madam Chair. 

     MS. HELT:  Just before we break, Madam Chair, Mr. Faye, there was a point where you were asking for an undertaking, and then Mr. Quesnelle raised a question of clarification with the witness panel with respect to the 24 million.

Was there still an undertaking there that you wished to obtain?  Or was it sufficiently clarified?  

     MR. FAYE:  Maybe I will ask one more question that will determine my answer to that.  

     The report that was done, this report where I spoke about going out and looking for date stamps, do you have that report?  And can I have it to read?  

     MS. CHEAH:  Yes, we can submit that report in.  

     MR. FAYE:  Okay.  Let that be the undertaking then, and that will satisfy it. 

     MS. HELT:  That will be Undertaking J6.4. 

UNDERTAKING NO. J6.4:  TO PROVIDE CONSULTANT'S REPORT ON POLE DATES.

     MS. LONG:  Thank you.

Then we will take our lunch break and be back at 2:05 p.m.  Thank you.  

     --- Luncheon recess taken at 12:55 p.m.


--- Upon resuming at 2:08 p.m.

MS. LONG:  Please be seated.

Mr. Keizer, do you have any preliminary issues?  

     MR. KEIZER:  I do not, Madam Chair. 

     MS. LONG:  Mr. Rubenstein, I understand you are going 

to commence with cross-examination of this panel. 

     MR. RUBENSTEIN:  Thank you very much.  I think I have an hour and a half; I will be considerably shorter than that.  

     MS. LONG:  Did you say an hour and a half? 

     MR. RUBENSTEIN:  I think I had an hour and a half, and I will be considerably shorter than that. 

     MS. LONG:  I heard your estimate was 30 minutes, so I was a bit surprised when you said an hour and a half. 

     [Laughter]

CROSS-EXAMINATION BY MR. RUBENSTEIN:

     MR. RUBENSTEIN:  Panel, I want to talk about, broadly, two issues with you.  

The first is a lot of things that were discussed in panel 1, which is about contracting and how that works.

Then I want to, secondly, talk about the enterprise resource planning system. 

     So first with respect to contractors, essentially as every intervenor in panel 1 asked about contracting, or how the contracting system works with respect to construction and maintenance and those, I want to understand from you better.  And those questions were generally punted to you.

So I was wondering if you can talk about, at a broad level, how the framework works with those types of contractors.  

How does the system work?  How does the bidding work? What is the time frames?  All of those sort of things.

     MR. NASH:  I can answer that for you.  

     The RFP process or RFQ process, depending whether we're looking for a proposal or a quote, is a fairly substantial process. 

     There's three major types of RFPs or RFQs that we do.  It can be for supply of material that we would use in our 

distribution system, it would be for professional services, and then it would obviously be for contractors that we use in the field. 

     The process, regardless of what it is for, follows the exact same methodology.  

     So we will work with the business unit to develop a scope of what we're looking for out in the marketplace.  We will work with that business unit to create basically what sort of pre-qualifications they are looking for, what type of work they're looking for, what types of companies we would being looking to go out in the market for.  And we would send either the RFP or RFQ out to the market.

Depending on the type of service or goods or material that we're looking for, it could go out anywhere from a few weeks to a few months, depending on the size of the actual RFP or RFQ. 

     Once it has been out in the market for evaluation, the 

response will come back in to us.  We will evaluate those with the business unit and my procurement groups together, and we will go through and answer any questions or ask any questions that we would have of the respondents. 

     There could be times when they may not have understood our scope clearly, so we want to make sure we get some clear definitions so that they understand what we're looking for and we understand what they quoted on.  

Once that comes back in, we then do an evaluation of the RFP. 

     Prior to the RFP or the RFQ going out to the market, we will sit and actually do an evaluation matrix.  So we want to make sure that evaluation matrix is done before the RFP goes out to the market, so when it comes back in we know what we're evaluating against. 

     When that comes back in, depending on how many respondents had responded to it, we will then go through what is called a short-listing process.  That short-listing process will be taking our evaluation matrix, looking at how we broke out the evaluation matrix, whether it is cost, quality, schedule -- all of them can have different percentages -- and what is important to us, depending on whether we're looking for a service or a good or 

contractors. 

     Once that evaluation matrix is done and the short list has been created, most often we will invite those participants in for a presentation.  

The presentation will be for them to give us an opportunity to walk through their proposal in more detail. 

It gives us the ability to ask questions back and forth, to 

make sure we're very clear and on the same page in terms of what we're looking for, and what we got a quote or proposal on. 

     Once that short-listing is created and the meetings have happened, the evaluation team will get back together again and then go through a final recommendation or final selection process. 

     Then once that is done, based on the amount of money that we're looking for, we have different approval levels within Toronto Hydro in terms of who has to sign off on that approval to give that good or service or distributor the supply material, and give them the contract.  

     MR. RUBENSTEIN:  Let me first talk about materials.  So say the application talks about replacement of a number of underground transformers; it is a common thing that Toronto Hydro has to do. 

     Do you go out to the market and say:  We want a bid 

on underground transformers for a certain amount of time? Is it a quantity you go out and you say:  We need 90?  Or is it:  What is the amount that you can provide us when we ask for it, and is there a length of time that those contracts would be in place for?  

     MR. NASH:  The work, the physical work to do that would be under the unit price contract we have been talking about. 

     You started out, in terms of the question, in terms of the materials?

     MR. RUBENSTEIN:  I'm talking about material contracts. 

     MR. NASH:  We simply are looking for material contracts based on our standard, our SKUs that we currently have, the stock codes that we have approved by our standards department.  And we go out for those on a periodic basis, depending on the length of the term. 

     It can be -- if you want to stick with transformers, it can be where we're saying that we will look at the capital program over the term of what we want to have that contract for, and we will give the supplier estimates in what we think we're going to be purchasing over the next one, two, three or five years, depending on how long the initial term of the contract will be for.  

     MR. RUBENSTEIN:  And will there be escalators, different -- you know, the idea that if you go out and you say:  We're going to need 500 transformers over the next three years, we would like -- you know, what's your best price?

Is that going to be escalated as we get to year 2 or year 3, or is it just a fixed price over the three years that's locked in?  

     MR. NASH:  Right.  It varies for every commodity.  So on commodities like hardware, we have a little more leniency with our distributors, our suppliers, to give more fixed-term pricing contracts over longer terms. 

     When we get into commodities like transformers, normally suppliers are more inclined to give us one- or two-year fixed terms, and then we have escalation, escalation numbers within the contract. 

     And if a supplier is unwilling to give an escalation in a longer-term deal, we will leave it open to negotiation but have a cap put in our contract, whether we cap the escalation as CPI index, to make sure that any escalation in longer terms of the contract don't go beyond a certain percentage. 

     MR. RUBENSTEIN:  Is it generally CPI?

I know it is hard to generalize, but for the assets, the distribution assets, is it CPI that is generally used as an escalator, if the contract has an escalator?

     MR. NASH:  It does vary, though.  It's hard to say it is only one -- to give an example, our cable contract that we have, we actually have fixed, firm pricing on our cable contract in terms of the actual manufacturing of that cable. 

     But the copper or the aluminum in the cable is actually all based to commodity matrices. 

     So the pricing of cable goes up and down, based on how 

the commodity goes up and down. 

     That is actually a very significant thing for us, because a lot of times suppliers are not willing to try to hedge on metal markets, and they will try to pass through any sort of increases to us to make sure that they're protected.  We like better having more of a supplier relationship where, when markets go up and/or down, obviously those conditions are already predetermined in the contract.

MR. RUBENSTEIN:  There was some discussion 

at the end of the last panel about exchange rate issues. 

     MR. NASH:  Mm-hmm. 

     MR. RUBENSTEIN:  Are most of the material, distribution material contracts in Canadian dollars?  

     MR. NASH:  I would say a majority of them are in Canadian dollars. 

     The only time, if we get into a contractual obligation with a contractor or supplier, where we have escalation anniversary dates to the contract will allow that contract to be reopened for negotiation for additional terms. 

     The only part that the supplier has the ability to ask for escalation is when it is tied to a commodity-based product.  

So there is nothing in our contracts.  They're not allowed to come back and ask for price escalations in our contracts when it comes to foreign exchange. 

     MR. RUBENSTEIN:  Now, moving on to the labour component, so the contractors who are putting in the assets, am I correct that -– sorry.

My understanding from panel 1 -- I think Mr. Walker used the term that they're contracted to do a unit of work, or they're priced on a unit of work, and it is not about the time it takes to do that; is that correct?  

     MR. NASH:  That would be correct. 

     MR. RUBENSTEIN:  And am I correct that the price per unit of work is only for the labour?  They're using your materials?  

     MR. NASH:  That's correct as well. 

     MR. RUBENSTEIN:  So can you help me understand?  What

granularity is the unit of work?  Is it to replace a transformer?  To replace a pole?  Is that the unit of work we're talking about here?  

     MR. NASH:  It is very -- it is very granular.  There is actually 6,400 units in this unit price contract.  It can be as simple as replace one pole to as simple as digging a metre of trench to two metres of trench, three metres of trench.  It actually is very specific.  There is 6,400 units when it comes to both our electrical and our civil components of that contract.  

     MR. RUBENSTEIN:  Let's use an example of a pole.  Is it there is just simply one price in a contract for replacing a certain type of pole, or is it, depending on where we are in the city, there are different prices?  

     MR. NASH:  There is actually multiple parts in this new RFP that was just awarded for 2015 that gave -- what we were really trying to do is give the contractors the ability to have other pricing methodologies that would give us some benefits in terms of reduced pricing. 

     So two things.

One, that we've added in -- we have added multiple -- multiple thresholds of installations of certain products.  So for your pole example, we used to only have a unit price for a pole.  Now we have a unit price for one pole, five poles, more than ten poles.  And what it's really been able to do is -- contractors were giving us the feedback that obviously if they go out to a street and install ten or 20 poles per unit price, it is obviously much cheaper than just putting one pole -- mobilizing a crew to install one pole. 

     So we have actually been able to do that.  From the latest RFP we have actually seen some very good savings on the electrical side from doing that type of methodology. 

     MR. RUBENSTEIN:  There is productivity aspect to it? 

     MR. NASH:  Absolutely.

The other part, just to answer the other part of your question, was, in terms of downtown, we have added in this RFP a downtown rate, and that was really because a significant amount of the capital program that we have on the horizon is mostly done in the non-downtown core area.  And we were seeing price escalations coming through from contractors trying to -- trying to ensure that they don't lose money by coming downtown to work.


So we actually separated the downtown from what we call the horseshoe, and there is then a price escalation for them to work in the downtown core.  Again, that type of methodology actually helped us reduce some pricing in the non-downtown core area. 

     MR. RUBENSTEIN:  Now, you have multiple contractors; am I correct?  Labour contractors; am I correct?  

     MR. NASH:  We do, yes. 

     MR. RUBENSTEIN:  And are they all -- do they all do different things?  Or do multiple contractors replace poles, as an example?  

     MR. NASH:  We have five unit-price contractors that specifically -- they do turnkey work, so they actually do the design right through to the construction, installation and commissioning of the materials. 

     MR. RUBENSTEIN:  Now, I want to understand, then, the bidding process for them, or the awarding of the contract. 

     Are they now on different -- is the unit price different for each of these, for each of the contractors?  

     MR. NASH:  It would be, yes.  To do it another way would actually be price-fixing.  It actually wouldn't be allowed to be done in procurement law, where you are forcing a price.  So they all submit their own pricing based on the 6,400 units. 

     MR. RUBENSTEIN:  No, I understand that.  I know it is not -- price isn't obviously the only thing you look at, but just, you know, you award the lowest price and then you sort of go up the chain, and you say second-lowest price, third-lowest, fourth-lowest price, fifth-lowest price, as compared to saying:  We're awarding on the lowest price, and then we say to the others:  You can come in at the -- if you want to also have work from Toronto Hydro, you have to accept the prices of the lowest bidder.

Are you saying that is price-fixing?  

     MR. NASH:  No.  What I'm saying is -- is asking for the five contractors to give us the same price on all 6,400 units is price-fixing. 

     What we've done in this -- again, the RFP is not a very simple process.  When we look at the weighing of the RFP, what we're looking for, it looks at things like cost, operational sustainment, environmental health and safety issues, and experience that they have working on our distribution system.  Those all make up parts of the RFP process. 

     As well, we actually invited over 100 vendors to this RFP process.  After the 100 were actually invited, there was an NDA signature process to make sure that they weren't sharing information and so forth within that process. 

     And at the end, we ended up receiving 18 total proposals at the end from 100 vendors that we went out to across Canada, basically.  

     MR. RUBENSTEIN:  Now, if you have five contractors with five different price schedules, in any given job that you -- or project you want to utilize them, how do you determine which one of the five?  Is it:  We try to go to the lowest cost first, and if that doesn't work we move up the chain?  

     MR. NASH:  Two-thirds of our capital program is basically given -- all that work is given to the two lowest-priced contractors that we have.  And the last third of the contract is divided amongst the other three contractors that we have.  

     But the business unit does look for opportunities to -- certain contractors have better pricing in different areas within the unit price, so the business unit does look to give the lowest-price unit cost in those particular areas, those types of jobs to do. 

     MR. RUBENSTEIN:  Now, what you're saying about the two -- the two biggest contractors get the most work and then the rest is split between the three, is that a structural thing within the contracts, that there is a minimum amount of work and this is how it will be divided?  Or is that just how you have allocated it?  

     MR. NASH:  No.  Part of our contract language is we actually do not have minimum guarantees of work within our contract.  That is to protect us, that if there was ever a reduction in a capital program and so forth, that would allow us to either terminate that contract or reduce the amount of work that we give a contractor within a contract.  It just doesn't -- it doesn't allow us -- it doesn't tie us into a contractor by getting into minimum guarantees of work.  So none of our contracts have minimum guarantees of work. 

     Particularly with the supply contracts, the same thing.  We have no minimum guarantee of buyout from a supplier either. 

     MR. RUBENSTEIN:  The structure you just told me of how you allocated, is that totally at your discretion?

     MR. NASH:  It is actually the business units' discretion, in terms of how they divvy up the work. 

     MR. RUBENSTEIN:  I don't mean you specifically.  I mean Toronto -- it is totally at Toronto Hydro's discretion?

     MR. NASH:  Yes, it is. 

     MR. RUBENSTEIN:  So if it was possible, they could have 100 percent being the lowest?  I recognize there are capacity constraints.  That could, in theory, happen?

     MR. NASH:  Correct.  If the lowest-price contractor could do 100 percent of the work, then that is what we would look to do.  

     MR. RUBENSTEIN:  Now, Mr. Walker talked about -- in the panel 1 about there is nothing -- a contractor is assigned something.  There is a unit cost.  There is no time -- it's not based on any time, you know, amount of time he has to complete the project. 

     Am I to understand that there are no penalties if the contractor takes longer than one would expect to do a task?  

     MR. NASH:  In some of our contracts we do have liquidated damage clauses in terms of time lines regarding completion of projects and so forth. 

     On this contract that we're speaking about here, I would have to check.  I don't believe there is actually a liquidated damage clause in this one for time, particularly, because it is a unit-price contract. 

     There are monthly and quarterly meetings with the business unit because we want to make sure that our capital program is going to get done within a given year.  So we obviously make sure that the contractors are pushing ahead to get that work completed in a certain time, but if they decide to take an extra day, a week or a few weeks to finish a project, it is of no consequence to us in terms of dollars or time. 

     MR. RUBENSTEIN:  But I would assume and -- that you have some projects where there are different steps.  You've got to do something first.  Then something else is able to come afterwards.


So a delay with the first person has a cascading effect.  You would agree with me?  And that would have an effect potentially on cost? 

     MR. NASH:  These contractors that we're talking about are turnkey contractors.  They are responsible for the project right from design to completion and commissioning.  So they're only holding themselves up. 

     MS. SPOEL:  Can I just interrupt with a question there?

So when you look at the amount of time it takes to complete a project, do you take into account things like the inconvenience to the public with roads being closed and things like that?  There's a project in my neighbourhood that's been going on since well before the beginning of last summer, I think, and -- by one of your contractors, and I just wondered, like, is that a consideration, that it is better to get things done quickly rather than slowly, just for general -- general convenience of the public?

Bike lanes are closed, sidewalks are closed, roads are closed.  

     MR. NASH:  Yes.  There are road moratoriums and hours of work that are starting to be more restrictive on us by the city.

I am not an expert in terms of what those are.  They're more left to the execution departments that manage that on more of a day-to-day basis.  

     MS. SPOEL:  Thank you.  

     MR. RUBENSTEIN:  So you've said that you have entered into a new contract, I believe.  It is referenced in a number of the interrogatories.  So that's from 2015, I believe, 'til how long?  

     MR. NASH:  It is a four-year term, with six one-year options beyond that, for a total of ten years. 

     MR. RUBENSTEIN:  That's for all five of the contractors that we have been talking about?  

     MR. NASH:  Yes, it is. 

     MR. RUBENSTEIN:  And at any point, have you -- and before preparing for this contract or in the past few years or -- or is there a plan going forward to look -- or have looked to have analysis done if you are optimizing:  Is this the best way to structure a contract for Toronto Hydro for ratepayers?  

     MR. NASH:  We believe it is.  We do find a lot more 

utilities, in particular the ones that we would talk to in the southern Ontario area, are looking at this type of model for their contracting work as well. 

     There's two ways, basically, you can contract out this type of work.  One would be to tender, so to speak, or put an RFP out for every single job.  That would be an administrative nightmare for us, to do the amount of jobs that are done through this group individually.

To RFP each individual job and take it through the process that I have laid out for you would be onerous on us, and would have a considerable increase in terms of staffing levels in our procurement department. 

     We feel the unit price contract allows us to get the best market value for the contractors, as well as builds in 

productivity for them to be more productive because it is based on unit price, not on just a job.  

     MR. RUBENSTEIN:  Do you have -- so first, I take it, then, you haven't done an analysis, you haven't taken a form -- let me go back.

You haven't done a formal analysis to determine if this is the best way to structure your outsourcing arrangement with construction and maintenance? 

     MR. NASH:  I would say there is no formal arrangement. 

     One thing I would like to point out is that within this contract, there is a provision in there for what we would call lump sum work.  And the lump sum provision allows us -- if we get into a job that has unknown factors or unknown risks to it, we actually have the ability to put the job out to the market.  

If we feel that unit pricing is not sufficient for us, we actually will send that out to those five contractors to have them individually -- individually submit a proposal on that job. 

     If that job -- when the submission comes in and we feel it is cheaper than the unit-price contract, then we will award it under a lump sum provision within the contract.  

     MR. RUBENSTEIN:  Thank you very much.

I want to now talk about the enterprise resource planning system.

My understanding from the evidence is you're planning to spend $51.3 million between 2015 and 2019 to implement your enterprise resource planning system. 

     It's my understanding that program is to replace the current Ellipse system and 30 other back office systems; is that correct?

     MR. NASH:  That's correct, yes. 

     MR. RUBENSTEIN:  And the total cost of the project is $54 million; am I correct?  

     MR. FLORIANO:  Correct.  

     MR. RUBENSTEIN:  My understanding is the system is to go into operation and -- for regulatory purposes, I guess -- is going in service in Q3 and Q4 of 2016; is that correct?  

     MR. FLORIANO:  That's correct, around there. 

     MR. RUBENSTEIN:  Would I be correct that besides Copeland, this is your single largest capital project that you have undertaken since your last rebasing, and it is the largest, besides Copeland, in the next five years?  

     MR. FLORIANO:  To be truthful, I don't know the answer to that.  I'm not sure.  

     MR. RUBENSTEIN:  But you would agree with me it is a very large project?

     MR. FLORIANO:  It is a significant IT project, yes.  

     MR. RUBENSTEIN:  Now, if I can take you to 2B SEC 39, 

appendix A, pages 79 through 84, this is from the business case for the project.  

     MR. FLORIANO:  I'm sorry, what was the page reference?  

     MR. RUBENSTEIN:  79 through 84.  I think it is being brought up on the screen here.  

     Under the "Cost savings" and "Increased productivity" --  what this table, as I understand it, shows is the benefits attainment targets.  Am I correct? 

     MR. FLORIANO:  Correct. 

     MR. RUBENSTEIN:  It provides the detailed amounts in the first year -- sorry, in year zero, so I assume the year it is being implemented, the first year, and then years after that; am I correct?  For each category?  

     MR. FLORIANO:  Yes.  

     MR. RUBENSTEIN:  And the numbers, I have added them up and they match essentially with what is in the evidence in 2B, E8.6, page 48.  You don't need to turn that up, but those numbers essentially match that.  

     My question is:  Are these savings all OM&A savings, or are some of them capital savings -- specifically looking at the "Cost savings" category and the "Increased productivity" category?

     MR. FLORIANO:  Sure.  Maybe I should just first go through the process we went through to determine those savings.  

     We met with each business unit area to determine, you 

know, future state processes for the processes that an ERP would encompass. 

     Each area then looked at current state and validated against future state on, you know, how it would be a better way to do things in the future under a new system, and then determined a cost for each of those savings, potential savings, both from a productivity cost savings perspective.  

     That was essentially the process that we undertook to determine that.  

     MR. RUBENSTEIN:  No, I understand.  But the amounts that you're targeting to save, are those OM&A savings or are those capital savings?  

     MR. FLORIANO:  Sorry.  I guess as part of the project, we didn't really determine specifically which ones would be OM&A or capital savings.  We looked at them as project savings, or savings that could be, you know, accrued or achieved as part of the implementation.  

     MR. RUBENSTEIN:  Are you able to undertake to tell me which of these categories would be OM&A versus capital?  

     MR. FLORIANO:  Yes, we could do that.  

     MS. HELT:  Undertaking J6.5. 

UNDERTAKING NO. J6.5:  TO EXPLAIN WHICH SAVINGS OUTLINED IN 2B SEC 39, APPENDIX A ARE OM&A SAVINGS AND WHICH ARE CAPITAL SAVINGS.

     MR. RUBENSTEIN:  Now, you have a category for cost savings and another category for increased productivity.  

     When I look at the descriptions, to be honest I'm not 

actually sure what the difference is.  Can you help me?  

     MR. FLORIANO:  Yes.  I mean, there is a difference between the two.  Essentially cost savings is really around work that would not be required anymore, and productivity savings is being able to do work a little bit more efficiently, in a more efficient manner.  So that is essentially the main difference. 

     There are some areas where there's a little bit of both in that, but essentially we looked at the main area where we placed it.  

     MR. RUBENSTEIN:  Thank you very much.

If I could ask you to turn now to page 74 of this document, this is the execution risks and critical success factor.  

     If I could ask you to look at the second row, adherence to budget --

     MS. GIRVAN:  Can I just interject?  It says at the bottom "privileged and confidential."  

     MS. LONG:  Mr. Keizer?

     MR. KEIZER:  That was disclosed as part of an undertaking response, so --

     MS. GIRVAN:  Just trying to be careful. 

     MS. LONG:  Thank you. 

     MR. RUBENSTEIN:  In the second sentence in the row 

"Description and associated execution risk," it says:

"ERP programs often exceed their allocated budgets regardless of systems selected and the system integrator." 

Do you see that? 

     MR. FLORIANO:  I do. 

     MR. RUBENSTEIN:  And you'd agree that is just recognizing that IT projects of these size have a habit of having significant cost increases as time goes on, and this is recognizing that that's a risk you want to mitigate; am I correct?  

     MR. FLORIANO:  I just would phrase it slightly differently. 

     We recognize there's been projects that have gone, you know, over budget in the past in the IT area or other areas, and that is a risk we wanted to make sure, as part of this initiative, we took seriously and worked towards mitigating.  

     MR. RUBENSTEIN:  So if I could ask you to move over to the high-risk mitigation measures, the first bullet is:

"Experienced ERP program manager, ERP project manager and ERP solutions architect employed by Toronto Hydro from initiation phase, provided expertise with budget preparation."  

     So this has all been done?  

     MR. FLORIANO:  Sorry, do you mean those phases that it talks about have been done?  

     MR. RUBENSTEIN:  Yes.  You were providing -– sorry, providing expertise with budget preparation.  This has been done, or will be done?  Have you retained these -- have you hired these people to do these tasks?  

    MR. FLORIANO:  Yes.  Actually so maybe it is helpful if I move just back one page -- 

     MR. RUBENSTEIN:  Sure. 

     MR. FLORIANO:  -- to page 73, which is our high-level time line. 

     MR. RUBENSTEIN:  Mm-hmm. 

     MR. FLORIANO:  And if you look at -- we actually began this initiative in Q2 of 2013 with the initiation phase. 

And around that time is when those -- some of those resources would have been brought on board to help us with the initiation and the strategizing and architecture phase of this initiative. 

     MR. RUBENSTEIN:  So just as an example, you have an experienced ERP program manager in place?  

     MR. FLORIANO:  Pardon?

     MR. RUBENSTEIN:  You have an experienced ERP program manager in place?  

     MR. FLORIANO:  Yes, we do. 

     MR. RUBENSTEIN:  If we move to the second bullet point, it says:

"All key business processes and functional requirements to be defined and agreed by Toronto Hydro and validated that they can be accomplished within the selected ERP system before the on-boarding of system integrators.  By limiting their role to the design, realize, and deploy and support and optimize phases of the program, spend velocity is controlled and likelihood of budget adherence is improved." 

     Can you explain what that is referring to?

     MR. FLORIANO:  Sure.  Actually, sorry, I just need to flip back to the previous high-level time line. 

     So the initial -- the program manager that you brought up earlier was brought in again as part of the initiation phase, strategizing, architecture phase, to really help us to scope out the initiative, high-level plans, work with the business units to determine requirements.  And when you move to that next bullet, that is really talking about bringing in a system integrator to work on the next phase, which is, in this diagram, slotted to start within Q3 of 2015. 

     So it is really two different functions.  NSI would be brought in, and that's when you actually start to build the system and start to, you know -- the costs at that point of the project will start to increase as you are actually building the system, trying to -- 

     MR. RUBENSTEIN:  Let me -- with that in mind, my understanding is, from the Interrogatory 2B SEC 39, the actual interrogatory -- you don't need to bring this up -- but this project will be -- the procurement process will be based on your normal procurement policy.  Am I correct?  

     MR. FLORIANO:  Sorry, what was the reference again, please?  

     MR. RUBENSTEIN:  In 2B SEC 39.  So this -- the actual interrogatory here, we asked you how you are going to procure this, and you said you will follow your procurement policy. 

     MR. FLORIANO:  Correct.  Yes.  We will follow the policy that Mr. Nash outlined earlier, yes. 

     MR. RUBENSTEIN:  So you will -- 

     MR. FLORIANO:  The process will be followed, yes. 

     MR. RUBENSTEIN:  At what stage are we at at this point to do that?  So my understanding is you actually haven't -- the actual organization who is going to build these software has not been procured yet.  Am I correct?  

     MR. FLORIANO:  You are correct, yes.  

     MR. RUBENSTEIN:  And where are we in the process to get to that point?  

     MR. FLORIANO:  I think, as I may have mentioned in the technical conference, we will not determine or purchase or procure both the software or the system integrator until we understand where we are from a filing perspective.  

     MR. RUBENSTEIN:  So if we go back to your schedule, then, if you have a Decision and rates are going to be in place for May 1st and the Board approves the capital project for this program specifically, are you still going to be in line to meet the requirements that are set out in this table with respect to the time line?  

     MR. FLORIANO:  So this time line assumed a May start or a May Decision.  If the Decision is later than that, there is a possibility that this time line for the third and fourth phases will move, depending on when we get that Decision or how much it needs to move. 

     MR. RUBENSTEIN:  Now, one of the things I didn't see when it says "adherence to the budget" or one of the ways that you can mitigate the risk was how you would structure that contract with whoever, if you're specifying at the RFP stage or at a later time when you're negotiating the actual specifics of how you structure the contract.

And that seemed somewhat odd to me.  It seems a way to mitigate cost overruns.  

     Is that not something you are taking into account?  


[Witness panel confers]

     MR. FLORIANO:  I think the best, you know, way to answer your question is we would follow a lot of the same and have in the past followed a lot of the same mechanisms that have the same language that -- some of the language that Mr. Nash spoke of earlier, including, you know, talking about strict time lines with the deliverables and also a liquidated clause -- liquidations clause.  

     MR. RUBENSTEIN:  But you would agree with me a $50 million IT system is a somewhat different type of asset than just the large distribution assets that you procure?  

     MR. FLORIANO:  I would agree with you that it is a different asset, but I believe that some of the processes to get best pricing and to have ensured pricing, I think, are similar regardless of what the project is.  

     MR. RUBENSTEIN:  Now, I understand from the evidence that there's -- at least with respect to some of the money you have spent already, it's with respect to -- you've hired some consultants to help you design the system or get the specifications that you need. 

     Are any of these consultants or will there be other consultants advising you on the best way to go about setting up the RFP and structuring the RFP?  Or will it be done wholly in-house with the expertise you already have?  


[Witness panel confers]

     MR. FLORIANO:  I think the short answer to that is yes.  The people that we brought on board to help us with this have a lot of experience in implementing ERP systems, and we definitely are taking their advice as we work through this program.  

     MR. RUBENSTEIN:  Now, with respect to the budget for the actual design and implementation of the ERP system, it is obviously some amount less than 51.3 million; am I correct?  

     MR. FLORIANO:  It is less than that, yes.

     MR. RUBENSTEIN:  And I would assume that in whatever budget amount you have, you have built in a contingency amount?  

     MR. FLORIANO:  Sorry, just give me a moment to find the reference. 

     MR. RUBENSTEIN:  I am not asking you to tell me the contingency amount on the public record.  

     MR. FLORIANO:  In the evidence there is a breakdown of the actual budget and the phases.  And a contingency would have been applied to that as part of, you know, the defining of this budget.  

     MR. RUBENSTEIN:  Are you able to -- and I would ask you to do this by way of undertaking so you can potentially make a claim of confidentiality -- to provide the percentage of contingency you are utilizing for this project?  

     MR. FLORIANO:  I believe we could give you that amount.  I would have a concern, given that we are, you know, going into negotiations or will be going into negotiations, RFP process and such, with that. 

     And I think having these already public is already concerning with respect to that.  So I would -- I would just have a concern around that.  

     MR. RUBENSTEIN:  That's why I'm saying Mr. Keizer can put in a claim for confidentiality over that and I would understand that.  

     MR. KEIZER:  We would be seeking confidential protection of the information.  

     MR. RUBENSTEIN:  So will you provide that?

     MR. FLORIANO:  Sorry, the answer is yes. 

     MS. HELT:  All right, then.  So that will be Undertaking J6.6. 

     MR. RUBENSTEIN:  Thank you very much, panel.  Those are my questions.  

     MR. KEIZER:  It is agreed that we can provide that on a confidential basis?  

     MS. LONG:  Well, I was just going to ask if anyone in the room -- there aren't many people here -- would have a concern with respect to the contingency amount on the contract being confidential?  

     MR. RUBENSTEIN:  We wouldn't.  SEC wouldn't.  

     MS. LONG:  You want to make submissions on why you don't -- 

     MR. RUBENSTEIN:  No, we would not have a problem. 

     MS. LONG:  You would not have?  Okay.  And the Panel does not have a concern, so that can be filed as a confidential undertaking response.

     MR. KEIZER:  Thank you.  

     MS. HELT:  I think, then, it would be JX6.6.  

UNDERTAKING NO. JX6.6:  TO PROVIDE, ON A CONFIDENTIAL BASIS, THE PERCENTAGE OF CONTINGENCY BEING UTILIZED FOR THE DESIGN AND IMPLEMENTATION OF THE ERP SYSTEM.

     MS. LONG:  So that being said, I believe, Ms. Girvan, you are next?  

     MS. GIRVAN:  Yes, thank you. 

     CROSS-EXAMINATION BY MS. GIRVAN:

     MS. GIRVAN:  I wasn't here this morning.  I was listening to Mr. Janigan, and then my computer died.  So I just have a quick question with respect to the operations centre consolidation.  


I think the evidence states, at Exhibit 2B, E8.3, page 2 -- I have given my references to Toronto Hydro to put on the screen.  

It is a number you're familiar with, and it says:

"The operations centre consolidation is expected to reduce the base revenue requirement by 23.9 million by the end of 2019."  

     So can you help me understand how this has been incorporated into the revenue requirements throughout the plan?  

     [Witness panel confers] 

     MS. CHEAH:  I think we feel that panel 5 would be better suited to answer that question.  

     MS. GIRVAN:  Okay.  I thought that was coming.  Thank you. 

     And then a few questions with respect to street lighting, which is found at Exhibit 2A, tab 5, schedule 1,  and these are fairly high-level questions.

It is just not clear to me -- I think I understand the evidence, but I just want to be clear. 

     Is it your evidence that the transfer of the street lighting assets has no impact on the revenue requirement for the 2015 to 2019 period?  

     MS. CHEAH:  That is correct.

MS. GIRVAN:  And that's because the full costs associated with street lighting are offset by the 

revenue you received from the city?  

     MS. CHEAH:  That's correct. 

     MS. GIRVAN:  Okay.  So that's based on a 

forecast. 

     How can you assure us, during the period, that there won't be any cross-subsidies by other ratepayers during the five-year plan?  

So what I am looking at is:  How can we be assured the revenue from the city will be adequate to manage that aspect of the business?  

     MS. CHEAH:  Our expectation would be we would be doing a monthly billing across, to ensure that the revenues would be transferred from the affiliate to Toronto Hydro. 

     And that would be -- and we do an annual reconciliation at the end of the year, to ensure that all of the costs are properly incorporated and the revenue offset -- 

     MS. GIRVAN:  So it is based on actual costs throughout the plan, not forecast costs -- what the city pays you based on actual versus forecast?  

     MS. CHEAH:  On an annual basis, it does get reconciled to the actual expenditures. 

     MS. GIRVAN:  Okay.  All right.  Thank you.  

     Just some questions with respect to information technology.  I just want to go to the sort of overview section of the Distribution System Plan, and that is Exhibit 2B, D4, page 6.  

     It says there that:   

"IT investment planning is in the process of developing a five-year program of prioritized investments, including a detailed plan for the first year."

     And I'm just wondering why it says it is in the process.  Can you help me with this?  Has this been done?  Maybe I have missed it.  

It sounds to me like you've got a detailed plan 

for the first year, but you are developing a five-year program.  

     MR. FLORIANO:  No.  So we have developed a five-year plan and a more detailed first year plan, and as we move through each year that more detailed plan is developed also. 

     So, you know, from the previous year we develop the more detailed plan as it comes.  

     MS. GIRVAN:  Okay.  I guess I just misunderstood, because it says you're in the process of developing the five-year program.  

     MR. FLORIANO:  I guess at the time when this was being 

written, that five-year plan for this term would have been being developed, or previous to that.  

     MS. GIRVAN:  Okay.  But the numbers haven't changed?  

     MR. KEIZER:  I think it says the IT investment planning is the process of developing a five-year plan.  It is not in the process, but "is the process." 

     MS. GIRVAN:  Okay, sorry.  All right.  

     MR. FLORIANO:  Thank you. 

     MS. GIRVAN:  If I can take you to a little bit more detail, I want to look at your software costs –- sorry.

Getting back to that same exhibit before we move on, page 8, at the bottom it says:   

"Toronto Hydro requires flexibility over the five-year period to execute its IT capital investment plan."

     And so what I am asking you is -- you want flexibility, so what exactly are you asking the Board to approve with respect to the IT capital plan?  

     MR. FLORIANO:  So as I mentioned earlier, we have our five-year plan of the different assets that we need to upgrade and enhance.  That's at a -- you know, a fairly detailed level, as much as we could do at this point.

You know, if I look at 2019, there's a lot of different things that can happen in the IT landscape.  There's a much shorter window for the assets than your 

traditional utility assets. 

     So if I just take one example of cyber security, that's an area in IT that changes on a very -- almost a daily basis, and the tools and the technologies that are required to be able to confront those challenges change. 

     So today, or at the time of this filing, we've made our plan based on what we know at this time, what would be required specifically.  

But if there's something that changes in our landscape that would require us to, you know, change slightly from our plan, we are asking for that flexibility to so. 

     MS. GIRVAN:  Okay.  Thank you.  If you could just turn to the section on software, which is Exhibit 2B, section B8.5, page 18.  

     And again, was this budget prepared by you, Mr. Nash? 

     MR. FLORIANO:  Sorry, are you referring to me?  I'm Mr. Floriano. 

     MS. GIRVAN:  Mr. Floriano, sorry. 

     MR. FLORIANO:  This was prepared by our team, yes. 

     MS. GIRVAN:  And when did you prepare these numbers?  

     MR. FLORIANO:  This would have been in -- prior to the filing, to our filing. 

     MS. GIRVAN:  So before the filing was filed, obviously?

     MR. FLORIANO:  Exactly. 

     MS. GIRVAN:  Do you remember when these were finalized?  

     [Witness panel confers] 

     MR. FLORIANO:  They would have been finalized around the June/July time frame. 

     MS. GIRVAN:  Okay.  Because again -- I guess this is something I have been struggling with with some of the other panels.  These numbers appear to be so precise to me.  For example, in 2018 on software upgrades, it is 10.93 

million.

And I'm just wondering how you went about establishing these budgets, if you could help me with that.  

     MR. FLORIANO:  Sure.  So we took an asset 

management focus, where we looked at the assets that we have in our environment and looked at the life of those assets, and determined what assets would be required to be upgraded based on the life of each asset, and the standard lifecycle of an asset, of those assets, different assets. 

     And then we simply plotted them into the year that that asset would require an upgrade.  And the landscape that we have is, you know, very visible to us, where we know the assets that we have in our environment both from a software and hardware perspective. 

     We know the lifecycles of those assets, and we're able to then look at, you know, the timing of when -- the right time to replace those assets.  

     MS. GIRVAN:  But would you agree, especially within the context of IT, that things change significantly over several years?  

     MR. FLORIANO:  I think I said that before.  So yes, I would agree with that; things can change within IT.  

     But when you are looking at the IT landscape and, you know, you do know the assets that you have in place and you do know when you are going to need to replace those assets, and you can make an estimate based on what the cost is going to be to replace those assets -- 

     MS. GIRVAN:  But you are not sure if that is going to be reflective of what exactly it's going to cost you? 

MR. FLORIANO:  I think we took our best estimate at what that cost would be at that time. 

     MS. GIRVAN:  Can you tell me, from your perspective, when you go through this plan, how are you going to judge success in terms of whether your dollars are going to be spent cost-effectively?  Is it whether you just install the assets?  Or how are you going -- how are you going to measure what your group is doing with respect to these assets?  

     MR. FLORIANO:  It really boils down to the business need.  These assets are there to support our business unit and also our customers that are getting information from these assets also. 

     So we will be able to -- you know, the best way for us to determine whether we have been successful is metrics like reliability and the performance of those assets and those systems. 

     MS. GIRVAN:  Okay.  Can I just, then, turn to the enterprise resource planning section?  It is Exhibit 2B, section 8.6.  So these are fairly high-level questions. 

     Can you just remind me whether you have an independent assessment of your ERP decision-making process?  I think Mr. Rubenstein referred to that, but you can refresh my memory.  Had an independent consultant look at your decision to -- actually, I think it is option 3 that you are moving ahead with? 

     MR. FLORIANO:  Yes.  I can refer you to that in our evidence if you like, if you look at Exhibit 2B, section E8.6, appendix C.  

     MS. GIRVAN:  From what I understand, you're going to do an RFP process in order to facilitate this program; is that correct?  

     MR. FLORIANO:  Correct. 

     MS. GIRVAN:  Yes.  And so in light of the fact that that hasn't been done yet, how did you arrive at these specific numbers?  Is this a placeholder?  

     MR. FLORIANO:  There was a few, I guess, elements that we looked at when determining the costs of our -- the ERP program.  One would be licence costs of the selected systems.  The other would be the system integrator costs of those systems, and then there would be internal costs. 

     So we looked at licence costs.  For licenced costs we looked at what is the market paying for the ERP systems that are out there, and really based it on our estimate on that, what have others been paying for it, and we looked to our experts to help us with that. 

     For the system integrator costs, we're not the first ones to implement an ERP, and also not the first ones in Canada or in the utility market. 

     We looked at, you know, what system integrator costs are coming in at and what others are paying for system integration costs. 

     And then internal costs, we looked at internally, you know, what do we believe that our internal resources -- how much effort will our internal resources be needed to work on this initiative.  

     MS. GIRVAN:  Was there any productivity built into that, in terms of saying:  Maybe we can do it better than what some others are doing, or maybe we should strive to do it cheaper than what others are doing.  


[Witness panel confers]

     MR. FLORIANO:  We looked at -- I think as I said a little bit earlier, we looked at what we felt that the -- you know, the costs would be from a realistic perspective, what we -- you know, again, we're not the first ones to implement an ERP, so we looked at what -- you know, what we believe it would cost and took our best estimate at that. 

     We also, I should mention, I think are taking an approach that is maybe a little more unique in how to implement an RFP and different maybe from how others have done it -- sorry, an ERP. 

     We have really -- and I think you can see that earlier when I showed you the schedule -- we've really focused on requirements gathering, and a paper exercise as far as requirements gathering, to ensure we fully understand what our requirements are prior to moving into latter stages of this initiative. 

     The cost of, you know, doing the requirements before you start to implement a system are significantly less.  Many systems -- Mr. Rubenstein mentioned earlier that, you know, IT systems tend to go over budget and, you know, we were aware of that as we looked at our budget and the costs of implementing this system. 

     So we really did want to ensure that we understood the requirements, because when you start to build a system and you need to make changes at that point because you didn't understand your requirements, that's when your costs are going to increase significantly. 

     And so we did want to ensure that we fully understand our requirements and drilled down on understanding them, because we are -- you know, once we start to build it, we are sticking to those requirements, because we do understand them.  And that will avoid some of the issues, I think, that others may have had in implementing an ERP.  

     MS. GIRVAN:  So I just -- sorry.  Okay.  So you've got the 17.7 million in 2015, and the 51.3 is included in 2016. 

Is anything going into service in 2015?  

     MR. FLORIANO:  Pardon me?  

     MS. GIRVAN:  Is anything going into service in 2015?  

     MR. FLORIANO:  The only elements that would -- sorry, I can't answer you exactly, but I can give you a general statement. 

     The only elements that -- sorry, I think I can answer you fairly easily, that 2015, nothing will be going into service.  But in general, with these assets, they would not be able to go into service until the system was operational, from a software and system integrator perspective. 

     The only element that could potentially go into service earlier are the hardware assets that would be leveraged by other systems at the same time as being used for this ERP system.  

     So most of the ERP could not be put into service until the system is actually operational in 2016. 

     MS. GIRVAN:  Okay.  So pretty much the full 51.3 is included in 2016 in-service additions; is that correct?  

     MR. FLORIANO:  With the exception of the hardware components that may be earlier.  

     MS. GIRVAN:  What's the value of that?  

     MR. FLORIANO:  Maybe I could give you a rough...

     Actually, if we turn to Exhibit A, 2B SEC 39 -- sorry, appendix A, page 90.  The computer equipment item is that amount.  So it is 3.405. 

     MS. GIRVAN:  Okay.  Thank you.  

     If you could just turn to the benefits associated with the ERP, so it is 2B, section E8.6, I think it is page 47 where the benefits are set out. 

     And I think -- there we go.  I think you -- is this consistent, are these numbers consistent with the schedule that Mr. Rubenstein took you to before?  

     MR. FLORIANO:  Yes, it is.  This is a summary of that, that schedule.  

     MS. GIRVAN:  Okay.  You are going to provide us with -- to the extent to which this is O&M or capital; is that correct?  

     MR. FLORIANO:  That's correct. 

     MS. GIRVAN:  Okay.  Now, have these savings been built into the proposed revenue requirements in 2016 and beyond?  


[Witness panel confers]

It would actually be '17.   

     MR. FLORIANO:  Sorry, I was just looking for a reference for myself, but these savings are beginning in 2017 and our rate OM&A is 2015. 

     MS. GIRVAN:  So you haven't made an adjustment to your base revenue in 2015 to reflect these savings?  

     MR. FLORIANO:  My understanding is that that would be 

handled as part of the rebasing at the next rebasing period.      

MS. GIRVAN:  So your customers won't see these benefits until 2020?  

     MR. FLORIANO:  So there are other benefits. 

     MS. GIRVAN:  But I'm -- 

     MR. FLORIANO:  -- that are included -- 

     MS. GIRVAN:  Cost savings? 

     MR. FLORIANO:  -- which are fairly significant, both from the avoided cost of implementing the system, or implementing the systems that this new ERP would replace.

MS. GIRVAN:  Did you consider at all making an adjustment to the 2017 base revenue requirement 

to reflect these savings?  

     MR. KEIZER:  I think that would be a question you would put over to panel 5.  

     MS. GIRVAN:  Okay.  Panel 5 is getting bigger and bigger.  Okay.  Those are my questions.  Thank you.  

     MS. LONG:  Thank you, Ms. Girvan.

Mr. Camilleri, are you able to tell me if CUPE is planning on cross-examining this panel?  

MR. CAMILLERI:  We are. 

     MS. LONG:  You are?  Okay.  I'm just wondering, Mr. Keizer, is the panel okay to go for another half an hour? We have only been sitting for an hour.

We could either take a quick break now and have Mr. Dumka go ahead first --

     MR. KEIZER:  I think they're fine.  Just for my 

understanding, who is left to cross-examine?  

     MS. LONG:  I believe the estimates that I have are the 

Society has half an hour, CUPE has half an hour -- probably fifteen It would actually be '17.   

     MR. FLORIANO:  Sorry, I was just looking for a reference for myself, but these savings are beginning in 2017, and our rate OM&A is 2015. 

     MS. GIRVAN:  So you haven't made an adjustment to your base revenue in 2015 to reflect these savings?  

     MR. FLORIANO:  My understanding is that that would be 

handled as part of the re-basing at the next re-basing period.      

MS. GIRVAN:  So your customers won't see these benefits until 2020?  

     MR. FLORIANO:  So there are other benefits. 

     MS. GIRVAN:  But I'm -- 

     MR. FLORIANO:  -- that are included -- 

     MS. GIRVAN:  Cost savings. 

     MR. FLORIANO:  -- which are fairly significant, both from the avoided cost of implementing the system, or implementing the systems that this new ERP would replace.

MS. GIRVAN:  Did you consider at all making an adjustment to the 2017 base revenue requirement 

to reflect these savings?  

     MR. KEIZER:  I think that would be a question you would put over to panel 5.  

     MS. GIRVAN:  Okay.  Panel 5 is getting bigger and bigger.  Okay, those are my questions, thank you.  

     MS. LONG:  Thank you, Ms. Girvan.  Mr. Camilleri, are you able to tell me if CUPE is planning on cross-examining this panel?  

MR. CAMILLERI:  We are. 

     MS. LONG:  You are?  Okay.  I'm just wondering, Mr. Keizer, is the panel okay to go for another half an hour? We have only been sitting for an hour.

We could either take a quick break now and have Mr. Dumka go ahead first?  

     MR. KEIZER:  I think they're fine.  Just for my 

understanding, who is left to cross-examine?  

     MS. LONG:  I believe the estimates that I have are the 

Society has half an hour, CUPE has half an hour -- probably fifteen minutes, and then Board staff has ten minutes.

So I think we can probably forge ahead and probably finish this panel today.  

     MR. KEIZER:  But we will take a break before we finish?  

     MS. GIRVAN:  Could I ask -- 

     MS. LONG:  Yes, yes, we will.  I just thought we would do one more person, and then take a break -- unless the panel feels they need it now, but it's only been an hour. 

     MS. GIRVAN:  Sorry, can I just ask one more question?  I just looked at my notes and I forgot one question. 

     MS. LONG:  Okay, one more question. 

     MS. GIRVAN:  This is -- again, I would just like to understand.


Would you agree that there is a chance that the ERP won't be in-service in 2016?  There is a chance that’s going to happen, given that you're forecasting towards the end of 2016.  

     MR. FLORIANO:  Again, as I mentioned, we are holding off, I guess, on the third phase of this initiative until we have a clear understanding of the results of our application. 

     I guess, depending on when we have clarity on moving forward, there is a possibility we would, you know, endeavour to try to complete this initiative as quickly as possible, given that it is a very important initiative for our organization. 

     We have -- 

     MS. GIRVAN:  I was just asking of -- it is possible, right? 

     MR. FLORIANO:  As I was saying, I think I did say that 

already.  And I said that --

     MS. GIRVAN:  Okay.  Just one quick question -- 

     MR. FLORIANO:  Sorry, I just wanted to finish, if you don't mind. 

     MS. GIRVAN:  Sorry. 

     MR. FLORIANO:  The need of this system is great.  We know that, you know, we have to replace the existing systems that we have in place, and if we don't do that, we will continue to put ourselves at risk from a functional obsolescence perspective and also from a security perspective, as I mentioned. 

     So we are driven to try to complete this initiative as 

quickly as possible. 

     MS. GIRVAN:  But it even could be delayed by a month, 

Realistically?

     MR. FLORIANO:  I guess any number you throw out could be possible.  But again, we are driven as an organization to move this forward as quickly as possible. 

     MS. GIRVAN:  Is there any you with a – 

MS. LONG:  Ms. Girvan, is this part B to the question, the final part to this question?  

     MS. GIRVAN:  Yes, sorry.  I am much, much less than my original estimate.  

Anyway, I just wanted to understand the revenue requirement impact if it's not going into service into 2017?  

     MR. KEIZER:  I should have a T-shirt that says this, but I think that panel 5 is probably the panel -- 

     [Laughter] 

     MS. LONG:  You made a note of that, Ms. Girvan, for panel 5?

     MS. GIRVAN:  Yes.  The list is getting long. 

     MS. LONG:  Then, you know what?  I am actually thinking maybe, if you don't mind, Mr. Camilleri, you would go next, because you are only going to be fifteen minutes.  Then we will take the break, and then proceed with you, Mr. Dumka.  That probably is a better way to space this out.


CROSS-EXAMINATION BY MR. CAMILLERI:

     MR. CAMILLERI:  Thank you.  Mr. Rubenstein had asked one of my initial questions, so I will go to J2, 29 CUPE, 14. the annual external contract service OM&A and costs.

I have a couple of questions for a couple of the buckets you have there. 

     What sort of services are being purchased for each of these categories?  So the temporary staff; what type of work is being done with the temporary staff? 

     MS. CHEAH:  With the temporary staff, as it relates to J2.29 CUPE 14?

     MR. CAMILLERI:  Correct. 

     MS. CHEAH:  The temporary staff is predominantly IT application and infrastructure support staffing. 

     There are components of some of finance and customer service also in there, to back-fill open positions.  

     MR. CAMILLERI:  Okay.  With regards to the maintenance contracts, what type of work is done on the maintenance contracts?  

     MS. CHEAH:  Maintenance contracts comprise both the IT maintenance of both, again the software and infrastructure 

Maintenance.  But it also includes the facilities and maintenance contracts for inside and outside maintenance. 

     MR. CAMILLERI:  Can you expand on the facilities portion of that?  Is that the stations and the work centres?  

     [Witness panel confers] 

     MR. NASH:  Sorry, Mr. Camilleri, can you repeat the question?

     MR. CAMILLERI:  For the maintenance contracts, is that 

for the facilities?  Is that for your, you know, the different stations you have around the city and the different work centres we have?  

     MR. NASH:  Yes, it would be. 

     MR. CAMILLERI:  Okay.  For the administrative fees and 

purchased services, with the administrative fees, what covers that?  

     MS. CHEAH:  The administrative fees predominantly is 

customer service related.  So for support of the call centre, also for meter reading and some field services. 

     But also included in there would be human resources, 

finance, legal, for consulting fees, audit fees, other 

professional fees.  

     MR. CAMILLERI:  Okay, that is a pretty big bucket.  Okay.  For the contracted services then?

     MS. CHEAH:  Those contracted services relate to services such as cable locates, pole inspections, our records management, some food service costs.  

     MR. CAMILLERI:  Okay, thank you.  For J2.29, CUPE 15, annual external contract service cap ex costs, I only have three -- questions on three of them. 

     For the contracted services, what work is done in that 

category?  

     MS. CHEAH:  Because this is cap ex, the contracted services also includes the HONI contributions in that particular line item. 

     It does contain a significant portion of Copeland as well.  

     MR. CAMILLERI:  Okay. 

     MS. CHEAH:  And also metering services.  

     MR. CAMILLERI:  For the administrative fees and purchased services, would the administrative fees – what does that cover?  What is covered under that? 

     MS. CHEAH:  The administrative fees predominantly is IT.  So it is to specialized skill sets that would be required for our capital projects that are brought in by the IT group. 

     And also in there is some costs related to Copeland as well.  

     MR. CAMILLERI:  Okay.  What work is done with the purchased services, then?  

     MS. CHEAH:  The naming convention, I will be honest, was self constructed.  It was supposed to gather the costs that were outside of the standard design and construction areas. 

     So there is really no real distinction between administrative and purchased services.  The administrative we would have referenced mainly for our back-office folks like the IT and HR areas, and purchased services was just a generic catch-all for other contracted services. 

     MR. CAMILLERI:  So with regards to the temporary staff, what work is done by the temporary staff in that category?  

     MS. CHEAH:  Again, it is IT.  There is a significant portion of it which is IT related to their specialized -- so the difference between the purchased services or administrative fees for IT would be -- they would be more contract-based versus the ones through temp staff would be the hourly contracted staff that would backfill and also help out with the IT infrastructure and application construction.  

     MR. CAMILLERI:  I think it would be a lot easier if a lot of these things were broken out even more and defined, because, you know, you've put so much in a bucket it is really hard to disseminate here on where all this stuff is going for OM&A and for CAPEX.

Just for the future.  That's just a statement. 

     Because when I see -- when we talk about IT and we talk about human resources, we don't know the exact -- the breakdown of that, right?  And that's not shown here.  And I really don't think it is -- to take an undertaking to do that, I don't -- but I just -- in the future I think you need to break that down better so we understand it.  

     MS. LONG:  But you are not asking for an undertaking, Mr. Camilleri?  Just a suggestion, I guess, for the next application?  

     MR. CAMILLERI:  Yeah.  Well, yes, and I will be around for that.

[Laughter] 

     MS. LONG:  Okay.  Are those all your questions?  

     MR. CAMILLERI:  Those are all my questions.  Thank you. 

     MS. LONG:  Thank you very much.


We will take a break and come back at 20 to 4:00, and Mr. Dumka, you will proceed at that point.  Thank you.  

     --- Recess taken at 3:20 p.m.


--- Upon resuming at 3:40 p.m.

MS. LONG:  Please be seated.

Mr. Dumka?

CROSS-EXAMINATION BY MR. DUMKA:  

 
MR. DUMKA:  Thank you.  Panel, I'm Bohdan Dumka from the Society of Energy Professionals. I don't think my questions are going to take very long with everything that's been asked about this afternoon. 

     And I think my questions are likely for you, Mr. Nash.  I just wanted to confirm -- I heard it earlier in the afternoon with regards to the contracts that you've got out, you know, with the -- now have gotten back from the five chosen vendors.  So I just wanted to reconfirm what you already said.  

You've got a -- I'll call it a project, with whatever bits and pieces: replacing a bunch of poles, putting a bunch of transformers.  So that is given to a particular contractor from start to finish, so they are accountable for completing that one project, as opposed to a leg or a step of the project; is that correct?  

     MR. NASH:  In all intents and purposes, that's the way those contractors work, yes, turnkey operation. 

     MR. DUMKA:  Okay.  And they don't get paid until they have completed that particular project?  Or is there progress payments or --

     MR. NASH:  There's progress payments when it comes to the design portion of the work, because some of these designs can take multiple months to design the actual project. 

     So if you go back to what the capital program was talking about in terms of a scope, when the scope goes to one of these turnkey providers, it could take anywhere from six months, nine months, to a year to actually do the detailed construction design.


So there are some progress payments built into the contract to reimburse them for that work that they've done. 

     But as the work generally happens in the field, it is done basically as the units are completed, and then they submit those in.  Those are verified by the business unit, that what they are charging for as work has actually been completed.  Then the payments are done accordingly. 

     MR. DUMKA:  So progress payments are tied into the progression of the work being done?  

     MR. NASH:  True.  Some of those capital programs could take –- again, not only from a design perspective but from an execution perspective could take multiple months, if not a year as well. 

     MR. DUMKA:  And those types of projects would accumulate AFUDC if they meet the materiality limit, wouldn't they?  

     MR. NASH:  Sorry, I am not familiar with UDC. 

     MR. DUMKA:  AFUDC, sorry.  Interest capitalized, you know -- because you're not putting the assets into service, they're accumulating in an account.  So what they do is the interest expense that it generates gets put into the capital work order with those payments.  

     MS. CHEAH:  Some of those projects would be eligible for AFUDC, yes.  

     MR. DUMKA:  Okay.  So -- and I think you have already answered this question -- well, maybe not in this circumstance.  

     So obviously the contractor has an incentive to get the job done within the time frame, so they can get the progress payments, et cetera. 

     Looking at it from the other side, if there's delays in the project, their payments get delayed.  But from a ratepayer perspective, the AFUDC will gather -- will increase your compounding the interest while the work order is open.  So if it takes some three months longer than originally estimated, that is going to -- there is going to be an overage on the project, because the AFUDC will be greater than it otherwise would. 

     So do you accept that?  

     MS. CHEAH:  If a project is still active in construction --

     MR. DUMKA:  Yes, yes. 

     MS. CHEAH:  -- but delayed?  Then yes, it would attract AFUDC. 

     MR. DUMKA:  Okay.  And so the primary incentive in this sort of circumstance for the contractor is to complete the project to get the payment, but there really are no other penalties?  

Or, sorry, I guess we should be careful.  "Incentives," I think, was the terminology that was used this morning to describe getting them to finish it.  

     MR. NASH:  The other part of that would be a lien or 

a construction holdback, which normally equates to 10 

percent of the job.  So those are held back as well. 

     MR. DUMKA:  Right.  And that's pretty well standard. 

     MR. NASH:  That's part of the Construction Lien Act, yes. 

     MR. DUMKA:  Okay.  I just wanted to confirm that it is really -- getting the payment as the work progresses is the primary incentive that the contractor has?  

     MR. NASH:  That's correct. 

     MR. DUMKA:  Okay.  Now, to step back, I'm wondering if it's possible -- and this may be difficult.  I'm just looking for a ballpark to get a sense for myself. 

     This is going back to the J2.29 CUPE 14.  You can see -- and we've seen the numbers -- or 15, let's go to 15, because the numbers are larger and we have seen them, I think, in some other interrogatories. 

     If we look at the design and construction contractors, which is what we have just been talking about, there is a design engineering component.  I'm wondering if it's possible to get a ballpark estimate of how much the engineering piece is in each one of the years that you have here as an undertaking.  

I'm not looking for precision and, you know, people spending nights or whatever else, but just sort 

Of -- you've got familiarity with the nature of the projects that get into this bucket. 

     So I am just wondering if it would be possible to come up with a rough estimate of that piece of these contracts.  

     MR. NASH:  Each one of the contracts that I spoke to earlier with Mr. Rubenstein have design percentages.  So the percentage of the capital program is contributed. 

That's how the designers get paid; they get paid on a percentage of the program.  That can range anywhere from 5 to 10 percent, in terms of the design company that the turnkey contractor has under contract. 

     We also -- just to follow up on what I talked to Mr. 

Rubenstein about earlier, there are a few design firms that are part of that RFP as well that we have taken on, on top of the five turnkey contractors, in case they run into any issues in terms of capacity.  

We have a few other, two or three other design firms, just design firms for us that are under contract to them, that they can utilize as well.

So they would be an approved contractor to do that type of work.  And that varies from 5 to 10 percent of the construction job, so that would be your percentage. 

     MR. DUMKA:  Would it be possible for you just to give me the numbers?  I can do -- you know, 7 and a half percent a year, that's fine.  

But could I ask you to do that as an undertaking, so we have it in the record as a rough estimate of the annual engineering cost of these projects?

     [Witness panel confers] 

     MR. KEIZER:  Sorry, I am confused.  We have the numbers and we have a percentage, so I am not sure what number you are seeking.  

     MR. DUMKA:  Well, I can do the division myself.  I'm more than happy.  

I just wanted something on the record in terms of:  This is the rough estimate -- in terms of out of the design and construction contracts, this is roughly how much we pay for engineering. 

     MR. KEIZER:  I think he has given you a range; it is 

somewhere between 5 to 10 percent, right?  

Sorry, I was looking at the screen, so --  

     MS. LONG:  That's okay.  That's okay. 

     So, Mr. Nash, if Mr. Dumka takes a look at the first column in here, "Design and construction contractors," and he takes 7.5 to 10 percent of each of those total amounts for each year, is that going to give him the number he is asking you for with respect to engineering design?  

     [Witness panel confers] 

     MS. CHEAH:  It's not as straightforward as multiplying a percentage across for this design and construction bucket, where we -- because we have identified five major contractors.

What we did for this particular exhibit was to identify those five contractors, inclusive of all of their design and construction. 

     So it would take a significant amount of work for us to detail out which portion was design, which portion was 

construction, because embedded in here is also our civil 

construction, which -- like, we would have to clarify whether or not that same 5 to 10 percent would be an 

appropriate number to assign to that portion of the construction project.  

     MS. LONG:  Mr. Dumka, it doesn't seem like it is a 

hard number for you to come up with.  I mean, what you're paying for engineering services over these years as a ballpark estimate, that seems like -- I don't know, Mr. Keizer.  Is that something on a best-efforts basis that you could take away?  

     MR. KEIZER:  Well, I guess what I'm hearing from the 

witnesses is that they have to go back and look at every -- am I correct they have to go back and look at every contract, or every particular way in which the jobs are actually done and arranged over this period of time to be able to get the estimate?

     MR. NASH:  Yes.  It gets a little more complex, in the fact that not all these jobs have design elements to them.  Some of them can actually be designed by Toronto Hydro and then given to a contractor to execute, even though predominantly these five contractors are turnkey operation where they do the design right through to the construction. 

     But I can't say that all of that dollars that you see there -- some of that could be designs that we have done in Toronto Hydro and then handed them to the contractor for execution. 

     So it would be a fairly -- 

     MS. LONG:  You don't have an estimate of whether that is half?  Or whether it is 60 percent that you would do in-house as to what you would do externally through your five contractors?  

     MR. NASH:  That level of detail, I would not know here right now, no. 

     MR. KEIZER:  Is it something on a -- I guess what the Chair is trying to understand is, what level of effort is it to get to that?  Is it something that you could try your best to, but if you -- at some level, or is it -- onerous task, difficult task?  Or is it something that you could ballpark?  

     MR. NASH:  This type of calculation wouldn't fall within the procurement group, so I would have to go back to the business unit to find out what the level of effort would be on this.  

     MS. LONG:  Just so I can understand, the difficulty is, with respect to these numbers, you cannot determine what you're doing in-house with respect to engineering design, as opposed to what is being designed by the five engineering contractors?  

     MR. NASH:  Plus then there is just the few design firms that just do design.  So it's a little more multifaceted than just taking the one contractor and looking at the engineering work that they have done.

     MR. KEIZER:  So you're saying you have to take every job that that -- one of those five does, figure out what part of that work is engineering or not for every job they may have worked on?  

     MR. NASH:  Correct. 

     MR. KEIZER:  Then do that for each of the five?  

     MR. NASH:  Correct. 

     MR. KEIZER:  That would be how many jobs that they would be -- 

     MR. NASH:  Because the value of the job would be important, because the percentage of the design for each contractor varies, and then the percentage is that of the contract value that they've -- or construction work that they have done, so --

     MR. KEIZER:  Because it is on a percentage basis --  

     MR. NASH:  Correct. 

     MR. KEIZER:  -- within the contract? 

     MS. LONG:  I don't want to be thick here, but I guess what I'm trying to understand is you do not have a total amount that you are paying external contractors for engineering design for any one of these years.  


[Witness panel confers]

     MS. LONG:  Is that -- am I understanding that correctly? 

     MR. KEIZER:  I think it is rolled together in terms of the engineering, the design and construction work that the contractor itself would do. 

     So as I understand what Mr. Nash is saying -- and he should correct me if I'm wrong -- is that within that arrangement with that particular -- one of those five contractors, they do design and construction work.  Some percentage of the contract is dedicated to design, but you would then have to look at the total value of each of the work that they had done and then figure out the percentage based on that of each of the pieces of work they did and the value of that work, and then be able to bring it together to isolate that one element of -- 

     MS. LONG:  I guess I thought that the design element -- or the engineering was between 7.5 to 10 percent of what the actual work done would be, that it was a percentage, and that to me seems like it is something that isn't that difficult to figure out.  But if you are telling me otherwise...

     MR. NASH:  That's what the contract states.  But when you add all of the other layers to the complexity of it, what Mr. Keizer just laid out, that is where it gets a little more complex. 

     MS. LONG:  I will leave it to you, Mr. Dumka, to try to figure this out, but I don't know if you want to pursue this any further. 

     MR. DUMKA:  Maybe we can step back for a second.  You've got a bunch of engineering design groups.  I presume you have some way of easily capturing that, you know, the outfits that just do design, and you just said you -- we're going through a circular path here, because you say:  Well, I've got to figure out -- and, you know -- pardon me.  You say you have to figure out the dollar value of the engineering work and then work that out as a percentage. 

     Well, just give me -- all I want -- I really want the dollars, and I thought the percentage -- that's why I asked -- was an easier way to come up with a reasonable ballpark. 

And the underline is on the ballpark.  Precision is not what I am looking for.  

     MR. KEIZER:  Well, oftentimes when numbers go out, numbers mean something, and I think -- but what the witness is saying, I think, is what -- and I misunderstood when he said the 5 to 10 percent.  That's a contractual term, as I understand it.  It's not just that that is the amount in the bucket; it's the contractual term.  And then you have to go from the contractual term through each job, through each contract, to actually be able to compartmentalize this amount. 

     So I am not quite sure how we actually square this.  I understand you want the ballpark number.  It sounds to me like it is going to be a significant amount of work to be able to get to the ballpark number, and I am also struggling with the -- what the number goes towards. 

     So I'm not quite sure where to take it from here, in terms of this.  

     MR. DUMKA:  Well, I guess what I will do is leave this in argument.  We have it on the record that somewhere in the range of 5 to 10 percent, if I understood the initial reply, is -- of these annual amounts provided in this particular undertaking are for engineering design.  And -- 

     MR. KEIZER:  If you're asking me as counsel to affirm that, I'm telling you I'm not, and the fact that I misunderstood, and when I did state that, it wasn't my understanding.  It has since been corrected by Mr. Nash and Ms. Cheah.  

     MR. DUMKA:  Well -- 

     MS. LONG:  So I think, Mr. Dumka, you can deal with the fact that you can't get the material that you are asking for, that it's just not possible to be produced.  You know, you may want to deal with that in argument, and I think that is the best that we can do at this point.  

     MR. DUMKA:  Okay.  Well, no, thank you, I appreciate your patience.  That is all I have.  Thank you.  

     MS. LONG:  Ms. Helt, do you have any questions? 

     MS. HELT:  Yes, thank you Madam Chair. 


CROSS-EXAMINATION BY MS. HELT:

     MS. HELT:  Good afternoon, members of the panel.  I don't have very many questions for you.  I am going to be asking questions with respect to street lighting assets, so I think this may be Ms. Cheah's area of expertise.

Specifically, street lighting assets in the transfer methodology, and my friends have asked a few questions with respect to this.  

     If we can look at the undertaking response, No. J2.17, which is found on page 37 of Board Staff's compendium, this references IR 2A OEB Staff 30, and there was a question as to why THESL believes the depreciated historic cost methodology is in compliance with the Board's Decision that was made in EB-2009-0180. 

     And THESL noted that the Board's Decision had stated that the Board preferred the DHC approach, but, given that historic costs were unavailable, the Board had to consider a next best solution and concluded that the depreciated replacement cost approach was that solution. 

     So can you just explain why the historic costs were not available at the time of the Board's Decision but why they're available now?

     MS. CHEAH:  Our updated number is a better reflection of depreciated historical cost.  So it's still not fully depreciated historical costs, but it is a better representation of it. 

     MS. HELT:  And can you just explain what you mean by a "better representation of it"?  How is it a better representation of the depreciated historic cost?

     MS. CHEAH:  For the assets that were installed and are being put forward for transfer subsequent to 2006 after the purchase from the city, those for sure are in depreciated historical costs, so that is not what is being in question right now. 

     But it's the original asset acquisition from the city, and it's those numbers where we were -- with the new information that we did come across, we were able to stratify the age of the -- and the vintage of those assets more accurately. 

     The original study that was submitted during the initial application, it was noted that there was approximately about 49 percent of the data.  The vintage data was unavailable at the time. 

     We subsequently came across a report that we did use for our IFRS purposes for asset componentization, to componentize our assets from a pooled componentization that we used.  And we used that same information, which did provide a lot more of our vintage dates, and it narrowed that 49 percent down to, I believe, 5 percent.  

     MS. HELT:  All right.  Thank you.  

     Did THESL perform a depreciated replacement cost assessment of the asset value while preparing the present application?  

     MS. CHEAH:  Sorry, could you repeat the question?  

     MS. HELT:  Sure.  Did THESL perform or undertake, while preparing the present application, a depreciated replacement cost assessment of the asset value?  

     MS. CHEAH:  No, we did not.  

     MS. HELT:  Okay.  And why did you not do that?  

     MS. CHEAH:  I don't believe we saw the need for that analysis.  Our update was to roll forward the natural evolution of the assets, so assets that were acquired from 2011 through to 2014, and also take into account the depreciation on the base assets that were approved for transfer, and on the assets that were put into service from 2011 to 2014. 

     So we were rolling forward our net book values on our books. 

     MS. HELT:  So you didn't think it was necessary to do that, then?  

     MS. CHEAH:  Correct. 

     MS. HELT:  All right.  If I can just ask some questions now about the revenue offset from street lighting assets, I have two references that I am going to be referring to, and they're found in the next pages of the compendium.  Reference 2A, tab B, schedule 1, page 22, which is found -- I'm just looking in my compendium -- an interrogatory response 2A OEB Staff 31, which is page 41 of the compendium.  So pages 41 and 42 and 43. 

     If we look at page 42 in OEB Staff 31, THESL was asked in parts (a) and (b) the following questions with respect to the revenue offset contract revenue, and these were:

"Please state whether the existing agreements 

between TH Energy and the city of Toronto will be transferred over to THESL and, if so, whether they will be transferred unchanged, or if any modifications will be made."  

     And in (b), THESL states that it proposes to allocate a portion of the revenue it expects to receive:

"Please state what the anticipated total amount of expected revenue would be." 

     And then if you turn over the page to page 43 of the 

compendium, THESL sets out what its response is to these two particular questions. 

     So my questions for you are:  Can you just indicate what the total amount of revenue was for the most recent actual year available for the existing agreement between TH Energy and the City of Toronto?  

     MR. KEIZER:  I guess the hesitant answer is related 

to the fact that this is information related to an affiliate -- and if I could just understand the relevance of the question?

     MS. HELT:  Well, I am trying to determine the portion of revenue that THESL is receiving from TH's Energy's contract with the city.  

     So maybe I can phrase it a different way, then, if that is helpful.  

     MR. KEIZER:  If you could. 

     MS. HELT:  Yes.  Can you just indicate the portion of 

revenue which THESL is receiving from TH Energy's contract with the city of Toronto of 8.1 million?  And is that equivalent to the portion of assets transferred over to THESL?  

     MS. CHEAH:  I don't know those numbers offhand.  

     MS. HELT:  Okay.  I am just seeing if I have -- if I look at the response to part (b) of the interrogatory on page 43, it talks about:

"For greater clarity, the 8.1 million figure represents a portion of the total revenue under TH Energy's contract with the city of Toronto.  Toronto Hydro proposes to allocate this entire 8.1 million amount to offset the revenue requirement associated with the transferred assets." 

     So then my question was if you can state whether the 

portion of the revenue which THESL is receiving from TH Energy's contract with the city of Toronto of $8.1 million is equivalent to the portion of the assets transferred over to THESL.  

     MS. CHEAH:  Again, I don't have the numbers in front of me, and to comment exactly what the percentage of the revenue received from the city to TH Energy, and then the portion transferred to Toronto Hydro.  

     MS. HELT:  Can I ask you, if possible, if you can undertake to determine that?  

     MS. CHEAH:  Yes, I can do that. 

     MS. HELT:  Okay.  So then Undertaking J6.7 would be to state whether the portion of the revenue which THESL is receiving from TH Energy's contract with the city of Toronto of 8.1 million is equivalent to the portion of the assets transferred over to THESL. 

UNDERTAKING NO. J6.7:  TO CONFIRM WHETHER THE PORTION OF REVENUE THESL IS RECEIVING FROM TH ENERGY'S CONTRACT WITH THE CITY OF TORONTO IS EQUIVALENT TO THE PORTION OF THE ASSETS TRANSFERRED OVER TO THESL.

MS. CHEAH:  Sorry, can I just clarify something?  The 8.1 refers to the 2015 test year. 

     MS. HELT:  Right. 

     MS. CHEAH:  So I just wanted to understand the question to make sure that we respond properly. 

     So the 8.1 would be -- are we looking for a response for if the 8.1, as a percentage of the total service city contract revenues received, is reflective for the 2015 year, or for the close of the 2014 -- 

     MS. HELT:  No, for the 2015 year. 

     MS. CHEAH:  Okay.  Thank you. 

     MS. HELT:  Thank you.  

     MR. KEIZER:  Just so I am sure, is that something we can do based on -– okay.  Thank you.  

     MS. HELT:  Okay.  If you could just give me one moment, please.  

     Just two follow-up questions.  Just with respect to when I was asking you questions about the depreciated historic cost and the depreciated replacement costs, would you know -- doing the analysis, either with the DRC or DHC, would you have any estimate as to how close those two numbers would be, if you did the analysis?  Or would they be giving you vastly different results?  

     I know that is a hypothetical, but can you answer that?  

     MS. CHEAH:  I think because the numbers were so far off in the first application -- so in the original application, I believe that the replacement cost value was 99 million.  So it was significantly higher than our book value at the time. 

     So I couldn't -- just based on our average spend for the year, I wouldn't believe it would -- I would believe that the depreciated replacement cost would be significantly higher still.  

     MS. HELT:  Okay.  Thank you.  That is helpful.  

     Just one other question, and I'm just looking at the 

existing agreement between TH Energy and the city of Toronto. 

     I believe THESL had a consultant on the transaction, which was PricewaterhouseCoopers; is that correct?  

     MS. CHEAH:  I don't recollect the exact consulting firm that we used.  

     MS. HELT:  Okay.  I believe it is in the evidence.  

     The PricewaterhouseCoopers report on Toronto Hydro street lighting assets is found at Exhibit -- 

     MR. KEIZER:  I don't think that was based on a transaction.  I think that was produced in support of the revaluation of the assets. 

     MS. HELT:  It was produced in support of which, I'm sorry?

     MR. KEIZER:  Of the evidence that Toronto Hydro has produced in this case. 

     I think your question had referred to Pricewaterhouse 

participating in the transaction. 

     MS. HELT:  Oh, I see.  Okay. 

     So then if we look at this PwC report, then, can you just -- and they did concern -- actually, no, that's all right.  

Did PricewaterhouseCoopers look at the $8.1 million arrangement between TH Energy and the city of Toronto?  

     MS. CHEAH:  No, that was not in the scope of their work. 

     MS. HELT:  All right.  Thank you.  Those are all of my 

questions.  

     MS. LONG:  Thank you very much, Ms. Helt.


Mr. Quesnelle has a question on street lighting.  

     QUESTIONS BY THE BOARD: 

     MR. QUESNELLE:  Just the -- two things.  Just looking at -- pull it up perhaps -- Exhibit 2A, tab 5, schedule 1, page 23 of 23 is the corrected September 23.  

     I am just trying to -- two things -- trying to follow the logic here, but maybe you could help me out. 

     We've got the split between street lighting and the unmetered scattered load of 95/5, a suggestion that the revenue offset of 8.1 will be allocated 100 percent to the street lighting. 

     Is that not kind of -- if there's no reduction, corresponding reduction to the allocation to the USL, isn't that kind of a double count, or is not USL getting short-changed about a half-million dollars a year?  It's not that material, but maybe to USL it is.


MS. CHEAH:  Unfortunately I'm not the best person to speak to this.  I think somebody on panel 5 will actually be able to speak to this better. 

     MR. KEIZER:  One of our rate experts on panel 5. 

     MR. QUESNELLE:  The other question -- it is more of an allocation question, or not so much allocation, but that classification to begin with. 

     In the first full paragraph it says:

"The USL attracts some of the cost, as the assets being transferred have in some cases served USL loads, and the 5 percent is the best judgment."

     So am I to take it that the USL footprint is not common with the street light footprint, that it is only 5 percent and not in all areas?  

     MS. CHEAH:  Again, unfortunately I'm unable to answer that question.  

     MR. QUESNELLE:  I don't know who would be, but -- 

     MR. KEIZER:  It would be Mr. Seal on -- who is appearing on panel 5. 

     MR. QUESNELLE:  Maybe Mr. Seal could be put on notice to -- what specifically I'm looking for here is the -- if the USL isn't common with the street light footprint in all cases, how did they get transferred to begin with?  The whole classification thing was if it's distribution it gets transferred, but if it only has the sole purpose of street lighting it doesn't get transferred.

So I am kind of missing the connection, the logic, there. 

     MR. KEIZER:  We will make sure we respond to that question. 

     MR. QUESNELLE:  Okay.  Thanks. 

     MS. LONG:  The Panel has no further questions.  So we thank you for your evidence today, and you are excused, unless you have any redirect, Mr. Keizer?  

     MR. KEIZER:  No, I have no redirect. 

     MS. LONG:  Okay.  Thank you.  

     That being said, I think that we have finished for the day, and we will expect to have panel 4 here tomorrow morning. 

     MR. KEIZER:  Yes, that's right.  Panel 4 will be here.

Just one note, that someone had advised me at the break that -- that there may be an update with respect to some particular numbers related to panel 4, but that will be sent out tonight, so parties should be attuned to that, and we will see it by way of e-mail.  I think it relates to some of the unaudited numbers that we were able to disclose previously, but we may be able to disclose some of those in the context of panel 4 as well. 

     MS. LONG:  Okay.  Well, we will look forward to that e-mail tonight.  Thank you.  

     MR. KEIZER:  Thank you.  

     --- Whereupon the hearing adjourned at 4:14 p.m.
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